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INTRODUCTION

Respondent’s proposed findings of fact should not be adopted by the Administrative Law
Judge., Many of those ﬁndingé are unsupported by the record, contrary to more reliable evidence,
incomplele, msleadimg, or otherwise unrehiabte. On the foliowing pages, we have reproduced
cach of respondent’s proposed findings of fact. Complaint counsel’s response (“CPRF™) follows
each finding or group of findings responded lo. While we have attempted to address the most
nnportant issucs poscd by the proposed lindings, we have not responded to every point made by
respondent. Accordingly, the failure to address a particular propesed Gnding or part thereof does
not signify endorsement of the finding, and should not be taken as agreement that the proposed
finding be adopted.

The following citation forms are used in ihese reply findings.
CPRF - Complaint Counsel’s Reply Finding
CPF - Complaint Counsel's Proposed Finding of Fact
CX - complamt counsel exhibit
SPX - Schering-Plough extnbil
LUSX - Upsher-Smith exhibit
Complaint - Complaint of the Federal Trade Commission, 1ssucd March 34, 2001,
Schering Answer - Answer of Schering-Plough Corporation, filed April 23, 2001,
Upsher Angwer - Answer of Upsher-Smith Laboratories, Inc., filed April 23, 2001
;%]'IP Answer - Answer of American Home Products Corporation, filed April 23, 2001.

Schering First Admissions - Schening-Plough Corporation’s Objections and Responscs to
Complamt Counsel’s First Requests for Admissions, filed Aagust 6, 200].

Schering Second Admissions - Schering-Plough Corporalion’s Ohjeclions and Responscs to
Complaint Counsel’s Revised Second Requests for Admissions, filed November 14, 2001.



Upsher First Admmssions - Upsher-Smith’s Objections and Responses to Complaint Counsel’s
First Sel of Requests for Admissions, [led Sopt. 10, 2001.

Upsher Second Adnrissrons - Upsher-Smith’s Objections and Responses to Complainl Counsel’s
Second Set of Requesis for Admissions, fled Novomberl2, 2001,

Upsher Third Adnussions - Upsher-Smith’s Chjections and Responses lo Complaint Counsel’s
Revised Third Set ol Requests for Adimissions, Dled Seplember 13, 2001,

Cilations 1o the iranseript include the volume, page number, and witness name: Tr. at 1:125
(Goldberg).

Pages of exhibits are referenced by bates number: CX 422 at 5P 06 00049,

References to investigational heanng or deposiiion transcnipts that have been included in the trai
record as exhibits inclnde the cxhibil number, the page and lines of the deposition or
investigational hearing transcript, the witness name, and the designation “IH” or “‘dep™: CX 1516
al 40:7-12 (Lauda dep).

Citations to admissions include the desionated ahbraviation and the parsgraph numbcr of the
request and response: Schering irst Admissions No.l.

In camera material and citations arve in fafies,

Documents that were admitted subject to the limitation that they were not nffered for the truth of
the matters asszerted are indicated by an astensk after the exhibit mumber: SPX 693%,

The investipational hearings of Schering olficials that have been admitied against Schering bt
are iised for the purpose of confradicting and impeaching the irial lestimony of Upgher’s ITan
Troup (a purpose which is currently excluded) are marked by a supcrscripl () [ollowing the
exhibit number.

AHP documents, depositions, and investigalional hearings were admitfed subject to the
Admimistralive Law Judge's sabisfaction thal complant counsel properly proved a conspiracy and
ali the required clements under the co-conspirator rule. These documents are marked by 2
superscript (1) following the cxhibit number.



L THE SCHERING/ESI SETTLEMENT NEGOTIATIONS

2.1. In Febmary 19596, Schering’s Key Pharmaceuticals division fled a complaint against ESI
for patent infringement. (11 Tr. 2486 (Herman); SPX 680). Tha complamt was filed in federal
district court in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania. (SPX 680). Key sought injunctive relief, as well as

costs and reasonable atlorneys’ fees. (11 Tr. 2555 (Herman), SPX 680).

Complaint Counsel’s Response te Finding No. 2.1:

Complaint counsel has no specific response.

2.2, Schering’s Iead counsel on the palent infringement case brought by Koy Pharmaceulicals
against ESI Lederle case was Anthony Herman. {11 °'Ir. 2486 (Herman)}. Mr. Herman is a

partmer at the law firm of Covington & Burling, who fbcuses on intellectual property and patent

litigation. (11 Tr. 2485-86 (Herman)).

Complaint Counsel’s Responsc 1o Finding WNo. 2.2

Complaint counsel has no specific response.

2.3,  The parltes first began iscussing a possible settlement of the case in Oclober 1996. (11

Tr. 2487 (Herman)). These discussions culminated in a January 23, 1998 agreement in principle

|



to seitle the lawsuit. (11 Tr. 2488-89 (Herman); 12 Tr. 2650-51 (LF. Hoffman); CX 1482 at

85:4-20 (Alaburda LH.)).

The proposcd finding is incomplcic. While the agreement in principle settled the
lawsnit, the final settlement agreement reached i June, 1998 contained several
anticompetifive terms added after the agreement in principle was reached. CPF 821,

CPRF 2.84.

2.4, Theissuc of sctiloment was brought up at the urging of the presidmg judes in the case,
Judge Duois. {11 Tr. 2487 {(Herman), SPX 1222 at 51:1-52:17 {Alaburda LH.); CX 1492 at
121:3-11 {(Dey I.H.)). At a statns conference, Jndge DuBais told them that he wanted the parties

to participate in a mediation session with a 1.3, magistrate judge. (11 Tr. 2487 (Hormman)).

Complaint Counscl’s Response to Finding No. 2.4:

The propoesed finding i1s misleading, irreisvant, and not supported by the cvidence
to the extent i sugrests or implies that the magstrate judge or the frial judge coerced
Schering into its agreement with AHP, or that Schering acted on a belief that it was being
threatened by these court officials. Tudges rowtinely encourage litigants to settle, a fact

acknowledged by Schering’s witnesses. Sec Tr. at 12:2647 (John HofTman) (Mr.



Hottinan agreed that it is uot uncommen for judges and magistrates to bang “attorncys
heads together in an effort 1o setile the case . . . ™ and that he has he has “come across™
such judges.). Mr, Hemman concaded on cross-exumination that the transcript of the
Markman hearing shows the trial jadge: (1) expressing his desire to hear closing
argumgnts and willingness to “reman this evening as long as it takes to finish this
malter.” (Tr. at 11:2551); (2) agreeing to a request from the parties that he defer closing
arpunenls (o chable then to pursue settlement discussions (Tr. al 11:2551-52); and (3)
stating “if we don’t settle the case, [ want to conclude the Markman hcaring with closing
arguiments tomomow.” See Tr. at 11:2554, I'r. at 11:2548. Additionally, one Schering
exsculive described the magisirate judgs’s approach as “recommend[ing] and
cocourag[ing],” not ordering Schering and AHP 1o sctilc the patent litigation. CX 1527 at
183:21-184:12 (Raymond Russo dep). Finally, Schering was represented by experienced
counsel. See Tr. at 12:2600-03, 2647-4%8 (Tohn Hoffman) {tcstified about hig litigation
experience, his responsibilities, including oversesing most of Schering’s litigation, and
his experience in other settfement discussions); Tr. at 11:2485-86 {{lerman) (testified that
he specializes in litigation with a focus on patent and intelleciual property). Schering’s
Associate General Counsel, Mr. Hoffman, acknowledged that where parties cannot agree
ol & settlement the judge imust try the cass. See Tr. at 12:2047-48. Mr. HoiTinan
admitied that the magistrate never said that a party who did not settle would be penalized.

See Tr. al 12:2648.

2.5.  Throughont the course of the litigation between Schering and EST, Judge DuBois imade it



clear that he wanted the parties to seftle the case. (SPX 1222 at 53:13-25 (Alaburda LH.}).

Tndge DuBaois brought up settloment every titne he talked 1o the parties, usnally as the first order
ol business. (SPX 1222 at 73:3-16 (Alaburda TH.)). Judge DuBois “kepl a1” (he parlies
regularly on the topic of settlement. (SPX 1222 at 77:22-78:10 {Alaburda LH.)}. Agccording to
EST's counsel, Tudge DuBois urged settlement on the parfies to a greater degree than any judge or
magistrate in that eotmsel’s experience. {SPX 1222 at 77:22-78:6 (Alaburda LH.)). Judge
DuBuis simply told the parfies that they had to settle. (SPX 1222 at 80:5-11 (Alaburda LH.Y).
The parties ultimately reached an agreesment after being “pushed to the walF* by Judge DuBois

and Judge Rueter. {CX 1492 at 146:19-147:4 (Dey LEH.)).

Complaint Counsel’s Response to Tinding No. 2.5:

The proposed finding is misleading, irrelevant, and not supperted by the cvidence
Lo the exlent 1l sugyesis or implies that the magistrate judge or the trial judge coerced
Schering into its agreement with AHD, or that Schening acted on a helief that it was being

threatened by these court officials. Sce CPRF 2.4,

A The Settlement Mediation Process with Judge Rueter Began in October 1996

2.6.  On October 16, 1996, both Key and ESI agreed to parhicipate in mediation, {11 Tr. 2495

{Herman); SPX 73},

Complaint Counsel’s Response to Finding No, 2.6:



The propased finding is not relevant. Otherwise, complaint counsel has no

specific response.

2.7, 'T'he magistrate judge appointed to purticipate in the mediation was Judge Rueter. (11 Tr.
2486 (Herman)). The mediation process with Judge Rueter uliimately lasted approximately 15

months. {11 Tt. 2486 (Herman)).

ounsel’s Responge to Findin

The proposed finding is irrelevant and incomplele. The negoliating process did
not proceed thinterrupted fot the entire 15 monith period. Schering’s proposed findimgs

2.21-2.22.

2.8, On October 21, 1996, Judge DuBois sent a letter to Judgs Ruster thanking him for
agreeing to preside over the mediatron process, and slaling that, 14 in his view, it would be
appropriate for Judge Rueter to request mediation conforence memoranda from the parties. (11

Tx. 2496 (Tlexmany); SPX 5350).

Complaini Cotmsel’s Response to Finding No. 2.8:

The proposed finding 15 not relevant. Otherwise, complaint counsel has no



gpecific response.

2.9. OnNovember 12, 19906, the parties provided Judge Rueter with mediation conference

memoranda. {11 Tr. 2496-97 (Herman}; SPX 74).

Complaint Counsel’s Response 1o Finding Wo. 2.9:

The propoesed finding is not relevant. Otherwise, complaint counscl has no

apeeific response.

B. The November 1996 Settlement Mediation Conference with Judge Rueter
210, A settlement conference wag scheduled for November 19, 1996, {11 Tr. 2497 (Herman);
SPX 77). The November 19, 1594 scttlement conference took place in Judge Ruoeter’s chambera.
{11 Tz. 2497 (Herman)). Mr. Herman and Susan Lee, in-house counsel for Schering, attended on
hehalf of Schering. {11 Tr. 2497 (Herman}). EST’s outside counsel, Paul Heller and Debarah

Somerville, and Amencan Home Products’ in-house patent lawyer, Larry Alaburda, attended on

behal[o[ESL (11 Tr. 2497 (Herman}); CX 1482 at 17:2-8 (Alaburda LHL.)).

Complaint Coungel’s Response to Finding Na, 2,10:

Compizint counsel has no specific response.



2.11. Iiispossible that Martin Driscoll, the head of Kev Pharmaceuticals may have been there.
(11 Tr. 2498 (Herman)). At that time, Mr. Driscoll was Vice Pregident of Marketing and Sales
for Key. {12 Tr. 2702-03 (Driscoll)). He first became invelved m the settlement discussions

belween Key and ESI in late 1996 or early 1997. {12 Tr. 2703 (Driscoll}.

Complaint Counsel’s Response to Finding We. 2.11:

Complaint counsel has no specific response.

2,12, Itis also possible that Michacl Diey, CEO of ESL may have attended. (11 Tr. 24498

fHerman)).

Complaint Counsel’s Response to Finding No. 2.12:

{Clomplaint connsel has no specific response.

2.13.  During that first mediation corference on November 19, 1996, Judge Rueler requested
oral argument on the sebstantive ments of the case. (11 Tr. 2498 (Herman); SPX 1222 at 58:13-
23 {Alaburda I.H.)}. Judge Rueter gave the parties a sheet of questions that provided a
framework for the oral argunent, and that served as diseussion points for settlement. (11 Tr.

_ 2498 (Herman}, SFX 77). The oral argument lasted between 1 and 2 hours. (11 Tr. 2499
{(Hermand)., Aftcr the areiment, Indge Ructor called the parlies inle his chaimmbers one at a fimme to

cxplorc their scttlement positions, which was his practice throughout the mediation process. (11



Tr. 2495 {Herman)).

Complamt counsel has no specific response,

2.14. At the first settlement conlerence, Tudge Ructer wld Schering Lhal EST was demanding
between S50 and F100 million in exchange for its staying off the markct during the life of the
patenl. {11 Tr. 2500 (Henman); CX 1508 Y9:24-100:8 {J.V". Hoffman L.H.)). In response, Mt
Herman told Judge Rueter that Schering was not inleresled in such a settlement. (11 Tr. 2503
(ITerman)). Schering agreed to proposc an allemative framework for a settlenrent. (11 Tr. 2503

{Herman); SPX 75).

Complainl Counsel’s Response to Finding No. 2.14:

The proposed {inding 1s irrelevani, based on hearsay, and not supported by the
evidence. Testimony regarding statemcents allegedly made by the magistrate and the trial
Judge was the subject of numerous objections at trial, and was admitted only on a limiled
basis and not for the truth of the matters asserted. See 11:2500-01, 11:2511-12, 12:2605-
09; see also Tr. at 11:2517 {Nields} {“I've said that several times, and it's & -- kind ol'a
standing statemnent, that [the tesiimony regarding what the judges said] is not heing

olfered for the trulh.™).



The proposed finding is irrelevant and mmproperly relies on altomey siatements
made in the course of negotiation to imply that the parties acied in accordance with the
cited statcments. Drawing inferences conceming how the client acled based on allomeys'
slatements, while simultansously ﬂsseﬁing privilege as to underlying cormmunications

between those attormneys and their chent, 15 unfounded and impermssible. CPRE 2.17.

2.15.  On December 10, 1996, Schering proposad to ESI that they enter into a co-promoticn
venture in which Schering and ESI would jointly fund and manage & third-party workforee in
rarketing K-Dur 20. {11 Tr. 2503-04 (Herman); CX 1452 al 67:9-24 {Alaburda LH.); X 1494

at 101:4-16 (Driscoll LH.); 5PX 70).

Complaint Coimsel’'s Response to Finding No. 2.15:
‘Lhe proposed [inding is incomplete. Under Schering’s proposal, AP would
have to abandon its ANDYA, which would have kept AHPs generic off the market

permanently. See CPLIT 854-55,

2.16. ESI rejecled the proposal on Febroary 20, 1997, stating that, as a generic mamifacturer,
ESI did nol have a sales and detail force capable of selling and marketing K-Dur 20. (11 Tr. 2504

{Herman); CX 1482 at 70:1-14 (Alaburda LH.); CX 1492 at 56:5-24 (Dey [LH.); CX 457).



Complaint Counsel’s Response to Finding No. 2,16:

The proposed finding is incomplete. AHP ultimately rejected Schering’s
proposal, stating it was concemed that abandoning its ANDA product under such an
agreement would violate the antitrust laws. See CPE 856; Schering’s proposed finding
2.20; CX 458 (3/19/97 letter From Panl H. Heller, outside counsel for AHP, to Anthony
Herman, vuiside connscl for Schering); SPX 79 (4/18/97 joinl lelier reganding seltlement
discussions from Anthony Herman, outside counsel for Schering, to Magistratc Judge
Rueter, reporting that AHP rejected Schenng’s propoesal “citing antitrust conccrns.™); CX

14827 a1 97:8-97:25 (Alaburda TH) (expiaining that Schering hae the only 20 mEq product
and that AHP’s agreetent nol 1o scll any product denng the period of the patent gave rise
to concems that the agreement would violate the antitrust laws). Also, the February 20th
letter reiteratcd AHP's offer to settle on the basis of a Heense that would allow AHP to
market its own K-Dur product, and under which it would pay Schering “a significant fee.”™

X 457,

C. The Febrnary 1997 Settlement Mediation Conferentce with Judge Roeter

Eight days later, on February 25, 1997, another mediation session took place mn Judye

Rugter’s chambers in Philadelphia, (11 Tr. 254 (Flerman); SPX 1202). Mr. Horman, Ms. Lec,

and Mr. Driscoli attended on behalf of Key. (11 I'. 2504 (Herman)). Mr. Heller, Ms.

Somerville, and Mr. Alaburda were there representing EST {11 Tr. 2504 (Herman); CX 1482 at

17:2-8 {Alaburda LH.)}. Judge Rueter called each party into his chambers separately, explored

10



the parties’ respective settlement positions, and relayed what the opposition was proposing. (11
Tr. 2305 (Herman)). Schering 1old ludge Rueter that it had made the copromote proposal. (11
1. 2510 (Henman)). Judge Rueter told Schering that ESI's position remained that it wanted
Schering to make a payment, (11 Tr. 2510-11 (Herman)). Schering told Judge Ructer that il was
not interested tn that approach, because Schering had antitrust concems and because Schering
was reasonably confident it would win the ease. (11 Tr. 2511 (Herman}; SPX 1222 at 64.7-14
(Alaburda LH.)). Schering told Judge Ructer that it did not want to settle at all. (SPX 1231 at
95:10-97:4 {Driscoll LH.)). Judge Ructer responded that both he and Judge DuBois winied the
case to settle, and he wanted Schering to go back and find a creative approach that would settle
the case. (11 Tr. 2511 {Herman); SPX 1231 ail 96:10-98:3 {D.Iiscull LH.). Judge Rueter toid
Schering 1hm Fudge DuBois did not wanl e try the case, and wanted a settlement. (SPX 1231 at

96:12-22, 97:5-0 {Driscoll LH.)).

Complaint Counsel’s Response to Finding No. 2.17:

The proposed linding iz irrelevant amd improperly relies on attomey statements,
made in the course of negotiations, to imply that the parties acted in accordance with the
cited statements. Complaint counsel was not allowed any discovery as o what advice
attorneys actually gave their clients, due to assertions of privilege by respondents’
counsel. See, e.g, Tr. at 12:2609-10; Cf CX 1509 at 5:8-20 (Mr. Nields saying he would
objecl 1o guesiions relating (o povileged communications); 19:15-20:7 (privilegc

objcction to queshion concermng whether Mr, Hoffman was bluffing during his

1



nceotiating with Upsher); 35:21-25 (privilege objection to question concerning whether
Mr. Hoffiman had talked with Mr. Rule about the Upsher patent infringement litigation
{(Holfman dep). Drawing inferences concerning how the client acted based on attorneys'
statcments, whilc simultancously asscrting privilege as to underlying communications
.bctwccn thos¢ atterncys and their client, is unfounded and impermissikle. Tr. at 12:2617-
18 (Tudge Chappell reasoning that implying a client's conduct hased on what his attorney
said to a Magistrate without cormecting the attorney’s remarks to the client does not
"add[] up”; Tr. al 16:3853-55 (Judge Chappell reasoning that it is impermissible to have
attorney testifiy ag to client's intentions without providing a foundation which does not
rely on privileged communications.). Furthermere, the statements are inconsistant with
Schering’s conduct: many occurred after Schering had already agreed to pay Upsher $60
milhon to stay off the market (see, eg., Schenny's proposed findmgs 2.26, 2.29—2.33;
2.39,2.40); and in the end Schering paid AHP 515 million to stay off the market. The
altoroey stalcments should only be laken as Schering simply posturing as parl of the
negotiating process, in order to strike a better deal.

The proposad finding is irrelevant, based on hearsay, and not supported by the
evidence. Testimony regarding staternents allegedly made hy the magistrate and the trial
judge was the subject of numerous objeclions .at trial, and was admitted only on a limilcd
basis and not for the truth of the maticrs asscried. See 11:2500-01, 11:2511-12, 12:2605-
09; gee afso Tr. at 11:2517 (Nields) (“T've satd that several times, and it's 3 -- kind of a
- standing statement, that [the testimony regarding what the judges zaid] is not being

offersd for the truth.™).
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The proposcd finding is misleading, irrelevant, and nol supperied by the evidence
to the extent it supgests or implies that the magistrale judye or the inal judge coerced
Schering into its agrecment with AHP, or that Schermg acled on a belief that it was being

threatencd by these court officials. See CPRF 2.4,

2.1%.  On March 12, 1997, Judge DuBois sent a letter to counsel slating {hat he undemstood

fromn Judge Rueter that settlement negotiations were continuing, and cxpressing his hope thal the

parties would settle. (11 Tr. 2513 (Herman); SPX 1198).

Complaint Counsel’s Besponse to I'inding No. 2.18:

The proposed finding i3 not relevant. Otherwise, complaint counsel has no

specific response.

2.19. By the time of ihe February 1997 mediabion session, John 17, Hoffinan had been given
supervisory responsibility for the ESI caze. (12 Tr. 2603, 2623-24 (LF. Hoffman}). Mr. Hoffman
is Staff Vice President and Associate General Counsel for Schering, and has responsibility far all
invesligations and litigation facing Schering, including patent litigation and with the exceplion of
cmployment Titigation. (12 Tr. 2603 (J.F. Hoffiman). For the last 25 vears, Mr. Hoffman’s legal
practice has focused on antitrust law. {12 Tr. 2602 (1.F. Hoffman). Mr. Hoffiman does not recall

specifically when his first mecting with Judec Rueter was. (12 Tr. 2603-05 (I.F. Hoffman)).

Complaint Counsel’s Response to Finding No. 2.1%:

13



Complainl counsel has no apeeific response.

2.20.  Following the February 1997 medialion session, the parlies conlinued {0 discuss
settlement proposals. Mr. Hoffman had one telephone conference w.{th counsel for ESL {12 Tr.
2603 (I.F. Hoffman)). Mr. Holfiman told ESI that Schering would not pay another compeny to
stay off the market, (12 Tr. 2631-32 (1.F. Hoffinan}, CX 1308 at 100:13-16 (I.F. Heffman LH ).
I response, BESD's representatives said that any antitrust problems could be worked oul. (32 Tr
2622 (I.F. Hoffman}). On March 19, 1997, Mr. Heller wrote Mr. Herman a letier stating that he
had been advised that Schering’s copromote proposal “raises consuderable mntitrust risks.” (11
1r. 2513 (Herman), CX 458). The letter neted, again, that ESI was amenable to an armangement
whereby Schering would pay ESI and ESI would receive a licensc (o cnier the market in the
future, {12 Tr. 2659-60 (117, Hoftman), CX 458}, As Schering had already explained to ESI,

this proposal was unacceptable. (12 Tr. 2631-32 (I.F. Hoffman)).

Complanl Counscl’s Response Lo Finding No. 2.20:

The proposed fimding is trrelevant and improperly relies on attorney statements
made in the course of negotiation to imply that the parties acted in accordance with the
ciled statements. Drawing inferences concerming how the chient acted based on attorneys'
statements, while simultaneously asserting privilege as to underlying communications

between those atforncys and their client, is unfounded and impermissible. CPRF 2.17.
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2.21.  OnApril 18, 1997, Mr. Herman sent a lettcr to Judge Rueter on behalf of both Schering
and EST reporting on the state of the settlement cfforts as being at *a standstill.” (11 Tr. 2514

(Henman); CX 459; CX 1492 at 129:1-2 {Dey LH.)).

Complaint Coumgel’s Response to Finding No. 2.21:

The proposed finding is not relevant. Otherwise, complaint counsel has no

specific response.

2.22.  Judge DuBois held a conference call with the partics, and wrged them to return to
mediation with Judge Rueter. (11 Tr. 2314 (Herman); CX 14%2 at 129:12-17 (Dey LH.}). On
Tuly 16, 1997, Judge DuBois ordered the parties to submit a settlement report. (1117, 2514-15
(Herman); CX 462). Iﬁ respomse 1o thal order, on July 23, 1997, Mr. Herman wrote Lo Judpe
DuBois on behalf of both ESI and Ecy reporling on the statos of scitlement. (11 Tr. 2514-15
(Herman); CX 462) That letter states that Key wili be preparcd to begin meeting with Judge

Rueter during the week of August 18 (11 Tr. 2515 {(Herman}, CX 462).

Complaint Counsel’s Response to Findmg No. 2.22:

The proposed finding 1= migsieading, irrelevant, and not supparted by the evidence
to the catent it sugpests or impiies that the magistrate judge or the trial judge cocread

Schering into its agreement with AP, or that Schering acted on a belief that if was being

15



threatened by these court officials. See CPRY 2.4,

D. The August 1997 Seitlement Mediation Conference with Judge Rueter
2.23.  On August 20, 1997, Judge Rueter held a third mediation session in his chambers. (11
Tr. 2515 (Herman); SPX 552). Ms. Lee, Mr. Herman, Charles Rule, Jeffrey Wasserstein, and
Raman Kapur, atlended on behalf of Schering. (11 Tr. 2515-16 (Henman}; 2573-2614 (Rule); 7
Tr. 1432 (Kapur LH.}). Mr. Kapur is the head of Schening™s peneric division. (11 Tt 2523

(Herman).

Complainl Connsel’s Responge 1o Finding No. 2 .23:

The proposed finding is incomplete. The chronology of events fails to state that [n
Tune 1997, Schering agreed to pay Upsher $60 million to stay ont of the market with its

generic K-Dur 20. CPF 166-16Y.

2.24.  Charles F. Rule 15 an altorney speciahving in anlifrust law. {11 Tr. 2571 {Rulg). ln 1987,
Mr. Rule was appointzd Assiztant Attomey General in charge of the Anfitrust Division of the
U.S. Department of Justice. (11 Tr. 2572-73 (Rule), CX 1525 at 9:8-15 (Rulc Depol); 11 Tr.
2516 {Herman}). After leaving the Department of Justice in 1989, Mr. Rulc became a partner at
Covington & Burling. {11 I'r. 2573 {Rule}; CX 1525 at %:8-15 (Rule Depo.); 11 Tr. 2516
(Herman)). He is now a partner and head of the antitrust group at Fried, Frank, Harris, Shriver &

Jacobson. (11 Tr. 2575 (Rule); CX 1525 at V:4-5 (Rule Depo.)). Mr. Rule was a partner at
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Covington & Burling in 1997, (11 Tr. 2573 (Rulc)).

Complaint Counsel's Responsge to Finding No. 2.24:

The proposed finding is incomplete. Mr. Rule, who testified about his discussions
regarding antitrust issues with the magistrate judge in the Schering/ AHP patent litigation,
admits that he was not retained by the magistrate as a special master, he was not
providing expert testimony to the magistrale, he was not nentral in the proceeding, and he
was “definitely representing [his] client” which had the incentive to mimmize its
payments to AHP. See CPF 861; Tr. at 11:2588-82 (Rule). Thus, any statemenis made
by Mr. Rule to Magmstrate Jndge Ruester cannot be regarded as an objective asscssment of
the antilrust laws as they stood at the time, but rather as advocacy to bolster his client’s
negotiating pogition. Mr. Rule also admitled that Schering paid him to testifv in this

proceeding. Tr. at 11:2585 (Rulc).

225, Dr. Dey, Mr. Alaburda, Mr. Helier, and Mz, Somerville attended the August 20, 1997

mediation scssion on behalf of ESL (11 Tr. 25135 (Herman)).

Complaint Counsel’s Response to Finding No. 2.25;

Complaint counsel has no specific response.

226.  The mediation session began with & joint meeting in Judee Rueter’s courtroom, and then
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each parly mel separately wath fhe judge in his chambers. (11 Tr. 2515-16 (Hemman)). During
the joint session Mr. Rule cormmented Lhat there were antitrust concerns raised by ESI’s
seftlement proposal, undet which EST would F;].;‘l}f off the market in exchange for a large sum of
maney that would be calculated on the basis of the profits that Schering stood to lose if ESI's
generic equivalent to K-Dur entered the market. (31 Tr. 2575-76 (Rule); SPX 1241 at 138:17-

25: 139:1-5 (Kapur LH.); 7 Tr. 1429-30 (Kapur LH.).

Complaimt Counsel’s Response to Finding No, 2.26:

The proposed finding 1s incomplete. Schering did not present an impartial
bricf of the antitrust issucs in the Schering/ AHF patent Litigation 1o the magistrate judge.
See CPRI 2.24.

The proposcd finding is irrclevant and improporly relics on allomey slatements
made in the course of negotiation to imply that the partics acted in accordance with the
cited stalements. Drawing inferences concerning how the client acted based on atterneys'
statements, whilc simultanecusly asserting privilege as to underlying comnunications
between those attorneys and their client, is unfounded and impermissible. CPRFE 2.17,

The proposed finding is also irrelevant. There is no cvidence that the magistraie
saw his Tole us passing judgroent on antitrust issues that might be raised by the zettlement.
The magisirale sought no impartial advice frum a special master or other independent
resource. Instead, he was given an apparently rather limited discussion of antitrust issues,
presented by an advocate for Schering. Tr. at 11:2589 (Rule) (he was there as Schering’s

lawyer to represent his clicat). The magistrale may have viewed Schering’s protestations
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as mere posturing, particularly once the tcrms of Schering’s settlement with Upsher-
Smith became kmowm. Moreover, according to Mr. Rule’s testimony, r.he magisirate was
advised that: (1) a seftlement with a payvment to stay ol the markel would raise less
gerious issues a3 long as it was bascd on AHP's lost revenues rathor than beiny caloulated
as a percentage of Schering’s profits; Tr. at 11:2584 (told magistrate thers was “a big
difference” hetween the twa, both in size and conceptually ¥ (2) any settlement that
occurred would automatically escape per se condemnation. Tr. at 11:2581. Paying a
competitor to stay ofl the market can be expecied (o harm the competitive process, and
thereby injure consumers, regardless of whether the payment is framed in tetms of
replacing Lhe lost revenues of the generic or paying a portion of the branded company’s
profits. This conld well have suggested to the magistrate that no significent antitrust
problems would be raised by payments based on AHP’s lost revenues. No one cver
appearcd before the magistrate to oppose Lhe January 1998 agreement or to argue that it

would violate the antitrust laws.

2.27.  Duwring the aftamoon, the parties met with Todge Rueter separately. (11 Tr. 2376 {Rule)).
Judge Bueter made clear that Judge DuBois wanicd the case to settle. (SPX 1260 at 131:13-17

(Wasserstein LH.}; SPX 1267 at 27:1-15, 27:23-25 (Rule Depo.)).

Complaint Counsel’s Response to Finding No. 2.27:
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The proposed finding is misleading, irrelevant, and not supperied by the evidence
to the extent it suggests or implics that the magistrate judge or the trial judge coerced
Schering inte its agrecment with AHP, or that Schering acted on a heliel thal il was heing

threatened by these cowrt ollicials. See CPRF 2.4,

228, Judge Rueter asked why an antitrust lawyer was engaged in the mediation. (11 Tr. 2579
(Rule);, CX 1525 at 28:18-25 (Rule Depe.)). Judge Ruster stated that he and Judge DuBois
would be approving the scillement, and that he could not understand how there could be “real

antitrust issucs.” (11 Tr. 2516 (Herman); SPX 1260 at 131:22-132:9 (Wasserstem LH.)).

Complaint Counsel’s Response to Finding No. 2.28:

The proposed findmg is irelevant, hearsay, and not supported by the evidenee.
Testimony regarding statements allegedly made by the magistrate and the trial judge was
the subject of nimerous objections at trial, and was admitted only on a limited basis and,
not for the truth of the matters asserted. See CPRF 2.17.

| The proposed finding is incomplete. Schering did not present an impartial brief
of the antitrust issucs 1n the Schering/ AHP patent liligation (o the magistrate judge. See
CPRF 2.24, 2.26.

The proposed finding’s suggestion that the magistrate or trial judge approved the

agreement in principle is not supported by the cvidence. There was no court approval of

cither the Jamuary 1998 settlement terms, or the June 1998 final sepreement. See CPF 893-
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900. Neither agteement was submitted for approval, embedied m any court order, or
subjected Lo any approval process. See CPF 893-900. Furthermore, the June 1998 final
agreemen| conlaims addilional lerms nol contained in the January 1998 agreement in
principle that further reflect the anticompetitive nature of the parties’ agreement. See

CPF §81; CPRF 2.84.

2.2%,  Mr, Rule responded that in his view, Judge Ruster’s approval would be “helpful but not
disposilive.” [11 Tr. 2519 (Herman), SPX 1260 al 131:22-132:9 {Wasserstein LH.)}. Mr. Rule
told Judge Rueter that his involvement in the settlement mediatton was not sufficient o give the
seitlement Noere-Pennington protection immuiizing it under (he antiirusi laws. (11 Tr. 2581
(Rule); CX 1525 at 28:18-29:12, 31:14-32:21 {Rule Depeo.)). Mr. Rule explained to Fudge
Rueter that the law did give deference to a judicially brokered settlement. (11 Tr. 2581 {Rule)).
The Law presumed that in brokering a séttlement, 4 judge is acting in the public interest and
would nol approve a per se vielation. {11 Tr. 2581 (Rule); CX 1525 at 29:1-12, 31:14-32:21
{Eule Depo. ). Mr. Rule told Judge Ructer that the law values selllemenis and therefore o
Judicially hrokered settlement in particufar would be given deference and analyzed under a rule

of reason. (11 Tr. 2580-81, 2588 (Ruley. CX 1525 at 29:1-12, 31:14-32:21 (Rule Depo.)h.

Complaint Counsel’s Response to Findmgr Mo, 2.20:

The proposed finding is misleading. Schering did not present an impartial

briel ol the antitrust izsues in the Schering/AHP patent litigation to the magistrate judge.
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See CPRF 224, 2.20, The proposed finding’s suggestion that the magistrate or trial yudge
approved the agreement in principle is not supported by the evidence. See CPRFE 2.28.
The proposed finding is irrelevant and improperly relies on attormcey staterments
made in the course of negotiation to imply that the parties acted in accordance with the
ciled statements. Drawing inferences concerning how the client acted based on atlomeys'
statements, while simultaneonsly assenting privilege as to underiying communications

between those attomeys and therr client, is unfounded and impermissible, CPRF 2.17.

2.30.  Notwithslanding the deference accorded to judicially brokered scttlements, Mr. Rule |
explained that he was concerned about the nature of the F.S1 proposal, which demanded a
payment from Schering to ESL (11 Tr. 2581 (Rule); CX 1525 at 29:13-32:21 (Rule Depo.)).
Mr. Rulc told Judge Ructer that such a settlement raised antifrust concerns. (11 Tr. 2575, 2581-

82 {Rule); X 1325 at 29:13-32:21 (Rule Depo.}).

oumsel’s Response o0 Finding No. 2.30:

The proposed finding is nmsleading. Schering did not present an impartial brief of
the antitrust issues in the Schering/ AHP patent ﬁﬁgatiun to the magistrare judge. See
CPRE 2,242 20,

The proposed finding is irrelevant and improperly relics on attorney stalements
made in the course of negotiation to 1imply that the parties acted in accordance with the
cited statements. Drawing inferences conceming how the client acted bascd on attorneys’

statements, while simulianeously asserting privilege as to wnderlying communicalions
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between those attorneys and their client, is vniounded and impermissible. CPRF 2.17.

231, Judge Ructer left chambers and went to talk to the EST contingent. (11 Tr. 2582 (Rule)).
When the judge returncd, he had a trade publication that indicated that there were other
_settlements involving the same type of payments to keep a potential generic cotpetitor off the
market. ([1 Tr. 2582 (Rule); CX 1523 at 40:15-41:2 (Rule Depa.); SPX 1267 at 33:16-34:9
{Rule Depo.)). The juﬁga specifically mentioned a settlement between Bayer and Barr. (11 Tr.
2582 (Rule); CX 1525 al 40:15-41:2 (Rule Depo.); SPX 1267 al 33:16-34:9 (Rule Depo.)). Mr.
Rule teld the judge that he was awsare that there had becn other such scittlements, bui that the fact
that those settlements existed and were on the public record did not mean that they were lawful
under the antitrust laws, or that the parties would not be subject to investizgation or scrutiny. {11

Tr. 2582-83 (Rule); SPX 1267 at 33:16-34:9 (Rule Depo.)).

Cormmlaint Counscl’s Response 1o Findine No. 2.31:

The proposed finding is mislcading and not relevant. Schering did nel present an
tmpartizl brief of the antitrust issnes in the Schering/Al4P patent litigation to the
magistrate fudge. See CPRF 2.24, 2.26. The proposed finding’s suggestion that the
magistrate or trial judge approved the agreement in principle 1s not supperted by the
evidenes, See CPRF 2.28.

The proposed finding is irrelevant and improperly rclics on attorney statements
made in the comrse of negotiation to imply that the parties acted in accordance with the

cited statements. Drawing inferences concerning how the clisnt acted based on allormeys'
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gtatements, while simultansously asserting privilcee as to underlying communications

between those aitorneys and their client, is unfounded and impermissible. CPRF 2,17,
Mr. Rule’s testimony that he was concemed about paviment from Schering

to AIIP is contradicted by other evidence that prior to making such slatemenls, Schenmg

had agreed to pay Upsher $60 million fo stay off the market, and had olfered AHP money

Ihrough Schering’s proposal that AHP abandon its ANDA produet and co-promote

Schermyg’s K-Dur 20, CPRE 2.17.

232, The judge continued to discuss a payment. (11 Tr. 2583 {Rule);, CX 1525 at 34:10-33:6
(Rule Depa); SPX 1260 al 131:18-132:9 (Wasserstein LH.)). Mr. Rule fold the judge that there
were bases under which there could be a pavment of money. (11 Tr. 2583 (Rule)). For example,
there could be paymenis ol reasonable allomeys’ fees. {11 Tr. 2583 (Rule)). There could slso be
a payment associatcd with a scparate, stand-alone co-promoiion or licensing agreement between
the parties. {11 Tr. 2583 (Rule)). It was troubling, howcever, for Schering to pay ESI some part
of its potential lost profits, (11 Tr. 2583 (Rule), 2516 (Ilerman)). It was particularly iroubling if
the paymeni was based on Schering’s potential lost profits, rather than the expected revenucs of

ESL (11 Tr. 2584 (Rule); CX 1325 at 30:14-31:12 {Rule Depo)).

Complaint Counsel’s Response to Finding No. 2.32:

''he proposed finding is misleading and not relevant. Schering did not present an
imipartial brief of the antitrust {ssues in the Schering/AHP patcnt litigation to the

magistrate judge. See CPRF 2.24, 2,20. The proposed finding’s suggestion that the
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magistrate or trial judge approved the agresment 1n principle 15 not supperted by the
cvidence. See CPRF 2.28,

The proposed [nding is irrelevant and improperly relies on atlomey slalements
made in the course of negotiation 1o imply that the partres acted 1n accordance with the
cited statements. Drawing inlerenices concerming how lhe chenl acted based on attormeys'
statements, while simultaneously asserting privilege as to underlving communications
between those attomeys and their client, is wnfounded and impermissible. CPRF 2.17.

Mr. Rule’s testimony that he wus concemed about payment from Schering
to AHP 12 contradicted by other evidence that prior lo making such statements, Schering
had agreed to pay Upsher $60 million to stay off the market, and had oiTered AHP money
through Schering’s proposal that ALIP abandon its ANDA product and co-promole

Schermg’s K-Dur 20. CPRF 2,17,

Schennyg made i gule clear that, based on its view of the case and the antitrust issues, it

was not preparcd to settle in the marmmcr proposed by ESL (11 Tr. 2584 (Rule); SPX 1260 at

131:18-22 (Wasserstein i.M.)). Judge Rueter urped the parties to continne to talk to try lo reach

an agreemenl. (11 Tr. 2584 (Rule); SPX 1267 at 27:6-13, 27:23-28:4; 44:21-45:18 (Rule

Depo.)).

Complaint Counscl’s Response to Finding No, 2.33:

The proposed finding is irrelevant and itmproperly relies on attorney statements
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made 1n the course of negotiation to imply that the parties acted in accordance with the
ciled statements. Drawing inferences concerning how the client acted based on attomeys'
slatements, while simultanecusly asserting privilege as to underlying ecommumications
between those atlorneys and their client, is unfounded and impermissible, CPRF 2.17.

The proposed linding is misleading, inrelevant, and not supported by the evidence
to the cxtent if suggests or implics that the magistrate judge or the trial judge eoerced
Schering into its agrezment with AHP, or that Schering acted on a belief that it was being
threatened by these court officials. See CPRF 2.4. The proposed finding is misleading
because Schering did net present an impartial brief of the antitrust 1s5ues in the
Schering/ AHP patent litigation to the magistratc judge. See CPREF 2.24,

The proposed finding is misleading and not relevaat. Schermy did nol present an
impariial brief of the antitrust 1ssues in the Schering/ AHP patent litigation to the
magistrate judge. See CERF 2.24, 2.26. The proposed tinding’s supgestion that the
magisirate or trial judge approved the agreement in principle is not supported by the

evidones. See CPRF 2.28.

Following the August 20, 1997 mediation session, on September 24, 1997, M, Heller

seni a ledler (o Mr. Herman. (11 Tr. 2519 (Herman); SPX 64). That letter projected the amount

of profits that ESI belicved il wouald carn if it werc 10 win the case. {1 1 Tr, 2519 {Herman); 5PX

04, at 5P 13 00004). ESIprojected that, with the simultaneons launch of three genenic versions

ol K-Dnr 20, ESI's gencric would earn over $15 million in sales in the first year on the market.

(SPX 94, at 5P 13 00004). ESI projected that its generic version ol K-Dur 20 would eain over
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$25 million in zales in s second year on lhe market, over $28 milhon in its thitd year on the
market, over $24 million in its fourth year on the market, and over $23 million in its ifth vear on

the market. (SPX 94, at 5P 13 O0004).

Complaint Counsel’s Responge o Finditg No. 2.34:

Complaint counsel has no speeifie responsc.

2.35. Schering was willing to discuss other opportunities that were mutually beneficial to the
parties apart from m outright payment io ESL (7 Tr. 1431 (Kapur LH.}; SPX 1242 at 125:18-
127:19 (Rapur Depo.)). Mr. Driscell discusscd. geveral such oppontunities with ESI, including
co-marketing Schering’s products. (CX 1510 at 140:1-2, 140:7-14, 1-’.113:23-25 (Kapur LH.); 7 Tr,

1431 (Kapur LH.)).

Complaint Counsgl’ : indi 2

The proposed finding 18 muslcading 1 that 1t sugpests that Schering’s other
proposals were pro-compctitive. In fact, Schering’s proposal that AHF abandon iis
ANDA product and co-promete Schering’s K-Dur 20 wonld have kept AHF s competing

generic off the market permanently. See CPF 854-55,

2.36.  On October 14, 1997, Mr. Dey wrote a letter to Mr. Kapar to discuss a proposal for ESL
to license several products to Warrick for overseas sale. (11 Tr. 2518 (Herman};, CX 465; CX

1482 at 121:1-4, 121:10-122:6, 122:25-123:9, 123:20-124:12 {Alaburda ({LH.). Those two
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products were enalapril and buspirone. (11 Tr. 2519-2¢ {(Herman); CX 1482 at 122:25-123:1-9,

(Alaburda LIL); SPX 1242 at 125:18-127:19 (Kapur Depo.)).

Complaint Counsei’s Response to Finding No. 2.36:

Complaint counsel has no specific response.

E. The October 1997 Settlement Mediation Conference with Judge Rueter
2.37.  The next mediation session wag on October 27, 1997, (11 Tr. 2520 {Herman}); 12 Tr.
2604 (I.F. Hoffinan)). It occmrred in Judge Rueter’s chambers, (11 Tr. 2520 (Hemman)). For
Schering, Mr. Hemman, Mr. Kapur, Ms. Lee, and Mr. Wasserstein were present, as was John
Hoffman, Schenng’s Viec President and Assoviate General Counsel in charge of litigation,

meluding antifttual. (11 Ty 2520 (Herman); 12 Tr. 2603-04 (1LF. Hoffman}).

Complaint Counsel’s Response to Finding No. 2.37:

Complaint counsel has no specific response.

2.38.  Judge Rueter talked about settlement with one party in his chambers whilc the other
party waited in the courtroom. {12 Tr, 2605 (I.E. Hoffman)). The judge then rotated the parties
and discussed seftlement options with the other party. (12 Tr. 2605 (1L.F. Hoffman}). Diring the
October 27, 1997 mediation session, Judge Rueter explained that Judge Dubois did not want fo

iry the case. (12 Tr. 2605 (L.F. Hoffman)). Judge Rueter stated further that Schering should
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settle the case, and ihat he believed Schenng should conzider paving a significant amount of
money to settle. (12 Tr. 2603 (I.F. Hoffman), 2703-04 (Driscall);, 11 Tr. 2520 (Herman); CX

1510 at 138:3-13 (Kupur LH.), 7 Tr. 1433-34 (Kapur LH.)).

Complaint Coungel’s Response to Finding No, 2,38:

The proposed finding is misleading, irrelevanlt, and not supported by the evidence
i the extent it suggests or implies that the magistrate judge or the trial judge coerced
Schering into its agreement with AHP, or that Schering acted on a belicf that it was being
threatened by these cowrt officials. See CPRF 2.4

Furthermore, there is no reliable cvidence that Judge Rueter personally believed
Schering should consider paying AHP to stay off the market, or that he asked Schering to
do so. Of the five cites that Schering gives for thig propositien, only one, Mr. Heffiman’s
lnal lestimony, suppors the statement in the findings. The rest only refer generally 1o
AHP?s proposal, or thal Magistrate Jﬁdga Rueter generally was encouraging seitlement.
Thus, of the several Schering personnel who were present at the mesting, only onc
asserted that Magisﬁaté Judge Rueter made this kind of statement. Mr. Hoffiman’s
teslimony was offered and admitted on a limited basis and not for the truth of the malier

asscrted. See Tr. at 12:2605-09,

2.39.  Mr. Hoffinan told Judge Rueter thal Schering had antitrust concerns with such a

settlement. (12 Tr. 2605 (1.F. Hoffnany, CX 1508 at 99:8-15 (L.F. Hoffiman 1.H.); $PX 1235 at
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103:24-104:4 (IL.F. Hoffinan LH.); 11 Tr. 2520 {Hemman); CX 1510 at 138:1-13 (Kapur LH.} 7
Tr. 1429230 (Kapur LH.);, CX 1571 at 123:14-124:15 (Kapur Depo.)). In response, JTudge Rueter
showed Mr. Hoffhian a news report about a patent settlement involving an exchange of moncy.
{12 Tr. 2613 (I.F. Hoffman}). Judge Rueter suggested that other companies included payments
in conneetion with patent settlements, and thal Schening couid do so in the ESI litigation. {12 Tr.

2613 (1.IF. Hotfinan)).

Complaint Counsel’s Response to Finding No, 2.39;

The proposed linding is misleading, irrelevant, and not supported by the cvidence
to the extent it suggests or implics that the magisirale judge or the izl judge coerced
Schering into its agrcement with AHP, or that Schering acted on a belief that it was being
threatened by these court cificials. See CPRF 2.4,

Furthermore, of the seven cites Schering has given for this proposition, only two
aclually support the fact asserted — Mr. Hoffinan’s trial testimony, and the sccond ciie Lo
bir. Hofiman's investigalional hearing. Mr. Hoffiman’s testimony shouid be disrcgarded
in light of the fact that it finds no support from other senrces, and because Mr. Hoifinan’s
mlerest as Schering's counsel in negotiating the best deal possiblc for Schering raises
queslions of the credibility of Mr. Hoffman®s statements.

The proposed fnding 1% itrelevant and improperly relies on attorney statentents
made in the conrse of negotiation to imply that the parties acted in accordance with the
cited statements. Drawing inlerences concerning how the client acted based on attorneys'

statements, while simultancously asscrting privilcge as to underl ying communications
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" between those altorneys and their client, is unfounded and impermissible. CPRF 2.17.

2.40.  Mr. Hoffman responded that Schenng could not engage in such a seftlement simply
because others had. (12 Tr. 2613 (I.F. Hoffman). Indeed, Mr. Hoffiman told Judge Rucicr that
“my mother had tanght me that just because everyone else is doing it doesn’t mean I can do it.™”
{12 Tr. 2613 (1.F. Hoffinan}). Mr. Hoffinan told Judge Rueter that a settlement conld not he
done simply because it could be a good deal for both partics; il also had to be fair to consumers.
(12 Tr. 2613 (J.F. Hoffiman)). Mr. Heffman stated further that Schering did not want to seftle the
case, but wanted to oy it. (12 Tr. 2612 (I.F. Hoffman); CX 1510 at 139:1-5 (Kapur LH.); 7 Tr.

1434-35 (Kapur LEL).

Complaint Counsel’s Response to Finding No. 2.40:

The proposed finding is itvelevant and improperly relies on atiorney statements
made in the course of negotiation to imply that the partics acted in ﬂ.l:(.':ﬂrdaﬂ[:ﬂ wilh the
cited statements. Drawing inferences concerning how the client acted bascd on attorneys'
statements, while simultaneously asserting privilege as to underlying communications

belween these attorneys and their client, is unfounded and impermissible. CPRF 2.17.

2.41.  Finally, Mr. Holfnan told Tudge Rueter that Schering doubted whether ESI's proposed
praduct could obtain FDA approval, providing still another reason that it did not make sense to
settle the case. (12 Tr. 2613 (1.F. Hollman); 11 Tr. 2520-21 (Herman)). Schering told Judge

Rueter that it did not appear that EST's product could be approved, given the considerable length



of time that had passed sthee ESI submitted i1s ANDA to the FDA. (1T Tr. 2521 (Herinan); 12

Tr. 2014 (I.F. Hoffinan)).

Complaint Counsel’s Response to Finding No. 2.41;

The proposed finding is irrelevant and improperly relics on attomey statcments
made in the course of negotiation to imply that the parties acted in accordance with the
cited stalegments. Drawiny inlerences concerning how Lhe clienl acied based on allomeys'
statemenis, whilc simultancously asscrting priviless as to underlying communicalions

between those attorneys and their client, is unfounded and impenmissible. CPRE 2.17.

2.42.  Mr, Hoffinan stated, however, that if Schering was to settle the patent lawsuit against
ES], it would do se by sphiting the remaining life of the K-Dur patent to roughly reflect the
ments of the liligation. (12 Tr. 2614 {I.F. Hollinan); CX 1509 at 106:15-21 (L.F. Hoffman

Depo.)).

Complaint Counsg]’s Response to Finding No. 2.42:

The proposed [inding is irrelevant and not supported by the cvidence. Bocause ol
privilcge claims, complaint counsel has had no opporfunity to test statcments allcging that
Schering attempted to settle the patent iitigation by splitting the patent life to “retlcet the
merits of the Tlitigation.” Access to privileged commumnications and documents was

necessary in order to determine whether Schering’s internal estimates of its likelihood of
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success m the patent litigation (if any} were in any way consistent with these assertions.
Ag Your Honor has properly recognized, these statements carmot support an infcrence

that Schering acled m accordance with these statements. See Tr. at 12:2617-18.

2,43, Aithe end of the October 27, 1997 mediafion session, no settlement between the parties

was reached. (12 Tr. 2618 (LK. Hoffinany; 11 Tr. 2520 (Heman)).

Complaint Counsel’s Response to Finding No. 2.43:

Complami counsel has no specific tesponse.

244, Another settlement conlerence was scheduled for November 17, 1997, {CX 468). On
November 12, 1997, Mr. Herman sent Judge Rueter a letter expressing Scherning’s position that it
would he a waste of the Court’s and the partics” time to procced with the scheduled settlement
conference. (11 Tr. 2521 (Hemman); CX 468). At that point, ESI had told Schering that it was no
longer mterested in a co-promoetion arrangement. {11 Tr. 2522 (Ilerman); CX 468). This was the
last time the copromote concept was raised. (11 Tr. 2522 (Herman)). The ietter informed Judge
Rueter that ES| had stated it was vnowilling to agree to Schering’s copromote proposal becanse of
antitrust concems. (11 Tr. 25322 (Herman); CX 408). ESI responded that although ESI was nol
mterested i a co-promole, the parhies were considering separate licensing opportunitics. (SPX

1195).

Complaint Counsel’s Response to Finding No. 2.44:
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The proposed finding is incomplete. Under Schering’s co-promotion proposal,
AHP would have to shandon its ANDA, which waoulid have kept AHPs generic off the

market permanently. See CPF 854-55.

2,45, Mr. Herman’s letter also addressed Key’s concems that ES| lacked a potentially
marketable product, informing fudge Rueter that Key was unwitling o make another settlement
offer until EST demonstrated that it has a bona (ide 20 milliequivalent polassium chlonide product

that but for the lawsuit would receive FDA approval. (11 Tr. 2522 (Heorman); CX 468},

Complatnl Cmmsﬁl’s Ecsponsce 1o Funhnge Mo, 2.45:

Complaint counscl has no apecific responsc.

246, The proposed Navember 17, 1997 settlement conference was put off. (11 Tr. 2521

{Herman)).

Complaint Counsel’s Response to Finding No. 2.46:

The proposed finding is not refevant. Otherwise, compiaint connsel has no

specific response.

2.47.  ESIthen provided Schering with information related to the current FDYA approval statis
" ol ESI's proposed seneric version of K-Dur. (11 Tr. 2523 (Herman); SEX §2). On December

15, 1997, Mr. Horman summatized this informaiion in a loiter to ESI's counsel, Mr. Heller and
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Ms. Somerville. {11 1. 2523 (Heman), CX 469). Mr. Hlerman told Mr. Heller and Ms.
Somerville that he intended 10 pravide the summary to Schering’s business people. (11 Tr. 2523

{Heiman); CX 409).

Complaint Counsel’s Response to Finding No. 2.47:

Complaint counsel has no specilic response.

2.48.  The December 15, 1997 summary noted the difficultics ESI had up to that peint in irying

to obtain FDA approval for its proposed generic version of K-Dur 20, (CX 469),

Complaint Counscl’s Response to Finding Ne. 2.48:

Complaint eounscl has no specific response.

2.49.  Asnoted in the sudy, the first problem ESQ had invelved a study included in the ANDA
designed to demonstrate EST’s praposed generic was hioequivalent to K-Dur 20. (CX 469; 11
Tr. 2523 (Herman)). The biocquivalence study was petformed m 1989, {CX 46%; 11 I't. 2523-
24 (Herman)). The FDA found five different deficiencics with regard to the study. (X 469; 11
Tr. 2523-24 (Herman)). EST did not respond to the FDA regarding the deficiencies untit M.ay 14,
1997, (CX 469; 11 Tr. 2524 (Herman)). On August 6, 1997, FDA rejected ESI's responsc to the
five deficiencies in EST’s bioequivalence study. (CX 469; 11 Tr. 2524 {Herman)). ESTbegana
new bioegumvalence sludy on December 8, 1997, a week before the December 15, 1997

sumarnary. {CX 46%; 11 Tr. Horman 2524 (Herman)}.
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Complaint Counsel’s Responge 10 Fitiding Wo. 2 49

This proposcd finding is incomplete to the extent that Schering implies it
concluded AHP did have an approvable ANDA. Tn his November 12, 1997 letter o
Judge Ructer, Mr. Herman had stated that “Key 15 unwiliing to make another settlement
offer until ESI demonstrates that it has a bona fide 20 mEq potassinm chloride product
that, but for this lawsuit, would receive I'DA approval.” See CX 468; Schormg’s
proposed finding 2.45. Two days after Mr. Herman shared with Schering-Plough’s
negotiating eommittec the information he had received conceming AHP’s ANDA,
Schering did in fact make another seittement our o AHP. Schenng’s proposed findings
2,50-2.53, The proper implication, then, is that Schoring was satisficd that AHI® had an
approvable ANDA and, as a result of this belief, acted to prevent AHP [rom entermg the
market. Sze CPF BOG-ROE.

Also, correspondence by Schering’s counsel expressly states that, in reaching the
January 1998 agreement in principle, Schering relied on AHP’s representations that its
ANDA was approvable. X 474 at SP 13 00633, Schering’s outside coungel, n 2 June
1998 leiter, staled thal “FDA approval . . . was an essential component of the principles of
agreement, and the [graduated)] payment schedule [in the agreement in principle] reflects
the central importance of [ AHP’s] representations that AHP s generic was “approvable.”
CX 474 at 5P 13 00633, In addition, Dr. Dey stated his belief that Schering would not
have settled the litigation if' it believed AHP did nol have a product that could obtain

FDA approval. UX 14927 at 68:9-68:13 (Dey IH). CDPF 875,

36



The proposed fnding 15 theomplets because 1t fails to point out that there were
only two significant deficiencies in AHPs ANDA that musl be correcied hefore the

ANDA can be approvable. CX 469 al AHP 05 00176
2.50. Two later, in a December 17, 1997 letter from Mr. Herman to ESI, Schering proposed to
settle the lawsuit by providing ESI with a license to markct its proposed generic version of K-Dur

effective December 31, 2003, (12 Tr. 2638-35 (). Iloffmany; (11 Tr. 2525 (Herman); CX 4700,

Complaint Counscl’s Besponge to Findine No. 2.50:

Complaint counsel observes that this proposal would have kept AHP out of the
market for approximately six vears. Otherwise, complaint counscl has no specific

ITEspoTISE.

2.51.  Theletter staled:

We propose to seftle the case based on the following: One,
Schering shail grant ESI a royalty-1ree licensc under the 743
palenl lo make, use, offer for sale and sell its Micro-K 20
potassiun chloride product in the United States effective
December 31, 2003, Until that date, ESI shall not make, vse, offer
for sale or sell its micro-K product.

(CX 470; 11 Tr. 2525 (Herman)).
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Complainl Counsal’s Response to Finding No. 2.51:

The proposed finding is incomplete. A fir broader provision was added to the
final settlement agreement rcached in e, 1998, after the involvement of the iagistrate
had ended. CPF 881, 896. Under the lerms in the finu! setilement agreement, AHP could
ol markel any potassium chleride product that 1s “therapeutically equivalent or
biocquivalent to, or otherwise substitutable on a generic basis [or, K-Dur 10 or K-Dur 20"

until Janvary 1, 204 (CX 4799 3. 1{a)iii), ¥ 1.2 “Referencing Product™;

2.52.  Schering firther proposed that “ESI will acknowledge infringement und vaiidity of the

“743 palcat ina consent pudgment.” (CX 470; 11 Tr. 2525-26 (Heoman) ).

{Complaint {Coungsel’s RBesponse to Finding No. 2.52:

Complaint counsel has no specific response.

2.53.  Schering also proposed that:
Ag an additional matter, ESI shall grant Schering, including its
designee, exclusive licenses for buspirone, enalapril, and threc
other products under development by EST to be mutually agreed
upon by the parties. . .. In exchange for the licenses described in
the wumbered paragraph above, Schering shalt pay BEST an up-
front payment of $5 rmillion and & 5 poreeni royally on annual sales

[ ton years post-approval.”
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(CX 470; 11 Tr. 2526 (Herman)).

Complaint Counsel's Response to Finding No. 2.53:

Complaint counsel has no specific response.

2.54. ESIresponded to Schering’s offer on Dacember 22, 1997, accepting the December 31,
2003 entry dale:

The general stmcturc of vour Diccember 17 proposal is acceptable

with the following madifications. The effective date of the llcense

under the “743 patent should be December 31, 2003, or whenever a

genenc is placed on the market, whichever cccurs sarher.
(CX 473; 11 T 2527 (Hermany, 12 Tr. 2639 {1.F. Hoffiman)). EST also agreed lo acknowledge
vahdity and enforceability but not infiingement, which Key had wanted ESI to acknowledge. {11

Tr. 2528 (Henman); CX 473).

Complamt Counsel’s Responze to Finding No. 2.54:

This proposed finding is incomplete, misteading, and not supported by the
evidence. ES['s response actually appeared thus:

The general structure of your December 17 proposal is acceptable, with the

Jollowing modifications: |

The effective date of the license under the “743 Patent should be
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December 31, 2003, or whenever a goneric is placed on the marked,

whichever occurs earlier. . . .

E3I will be able to market in the United States if the *743 Patent is

invalidated or rendered unenforceable by another party. . .. CX 473,
In 1o way does this mdicate that EST accepted the December 31, 2003 cntry date. Not
only was the acceptance of any date contingent nupon Schering accepting the other
modifications presented in AHP’s counterpropusal, buf also the dale was changed to
cither Decamber 31, 2003 or the date that the (irst gencric was placed on the market,
whichever came first. Schermg rejected AHP’s counterproposal, sinee acceptance would
1(::11:1_ to AHP entering the tnarket al the same time as Upsher, on September 1, 2001, il
Upsher did not have exclusivity, or March 2002, if Upsher did bave exclusivity.
Mersover, at the time of its counterproposal, AHP was aware that Schering had paid
Lipsher to stay off the market until September 1, 2001, See CPF 863-865. Thus, if AHP
agreed 1o any date at this time, it agreed to a September 1, 2001, or a March 2002, entry

date.

The date of December 31, 2003 reforred to in the letters differs from the date for ESTs

product entry in the final agreement by one day. {11 Tr. 2525 (Hermandy; CX 470, CX 473; CX

479). In the [inal agreement, the date agreed upon was January 1, 2004, (11 Tr. 2525 (Herman));

CX 479),

Complaint Counsel’s Response to Findimg No. 2.55;
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The proposed linding is not relevant. Because AHP did not agree to the entry date
at the time of the letters, it is not relevant that the date agreed upon on January 23, 1998,

dilTered tom il by one day. See CPFR 2.54; 2.57.

2.56. ESl also agreed to grant licenses to Schering for buspirone, enalapril, and three other
products to be agreed vpon. {11 Tr. 2328 (Herman)); CX 473; CX 1509 at 70:17-22 ([.F.
Hoffman Depo.)). EST countered with an initial $5 million payment, to be lollowed by further
payments upon the FDA s issuance of an approval letter and thereafter for a total of $55 million
on an agreed-upon time schedule. (11 Tr. 2528 (1.F. Hoillinan); CX 473). ‘This represents a $50
million difference between Schering’s offer. (11 Tr. 2528 (Herman); CX 470; CX 473). ESl also
proposed a royalty rate of 30 percent of gross profit for the licenses to Scheting, as opposed to

Scheting’s proposal of 5 percent of anmual sales, (11 1r. 2528-29 (Herman), CX 473; CX 470}

Coimplaint Counsel’s Response 1o Findin

The proposed finding is incomplete and mislcading. AHPs counler-proposal
included a provision calling for $50 million in payments from Schering to AHP “upon the
issnance by the FDA of an approvable letter for EST Lederle’s AN/24 and thereafter, for a
total of $35 million . . . . CX 473; 471 (emphasis added). Mr. Alaburda of AHP
testified that AHP “felt 2 payment of $50 million dollars was what they thought they
would be disadvantaged” by entering with its generie K-Dur 20 at a later date and “that

was the amomnt that we would like in order to make up [or the loss of an incoms stream

41



time-wise.” CX 14821 at 133:13-134:6 (Alaburda TH),

2,57, Belween the e of the Decanber 22, 1997 comespondence and January 23, 1998, the
datc Schering and ESI reached an agreement in principle to resolve the patent infringement
lawrsuit, Schering and EST had agreed on a January 1, 2004 date of entry for ESL (12 Tr. 2640,
2619-20, 2638 (J.F. Haffinan};, CX 1309 at 70:4-16 (L.F. Hoffinan Depo.); 11 Tr. 2532-33
(Herman'}. Schering told ESI that January 1, 2004 was as [ar as Schering would go. (CX 1482
at 9%:17-100:6 (Alaburda LH.}; SPX 1222 101:9-17 (Alaburda LH.), CX 1492 at 136:16-137:4
(Dey LH.}). Schering made it very clear to ESI thal “that was it. That was ag far as they would
go, and there wouldn't be any further negotiating on that point.” [(CX 1432 a1 99:17-1(0k6
{Alaburda L1L)Y; SPX 1222 at 101:9-17 (Alaburda LI1.)). Schering was clear that “if {EST]
wanted a settlement that was the date beyond which [Schering] wouldn’t go any further.” {§PX

1222 at 101:9-17 (Alaburda LHL)).

Complaint Counscl’s Responsc to Finding No, 2.57:

The proposed finding is not supportcd by the evidence and 1s incomplete. The
proposed finding 15 not supported by the evidence because AHP and Schering did not
agree 10 a delayed eniry dale until the January 23, 1998, meeting. See CPF 874; CPRF
2.54. Mr. Driscoll, & Schering executive, agreed under cross-examination that “prior to
that Friday night,” Schering and [AHP] had nol agreed on the date AHP’s generic could
gnter. Tr. at 12:2720-21 {Driscoll). Dr. Dey, an AHP executive, testified that the date

when AlIP would be allowed to enter the markel was one of the “two basic issues being
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digcussed™ on Jammary 23", CX 14927 at 142:4-143:2, 136:9-138:5 (Dey IH).

Mr. Alaburda was equally clear on this point:
My hest recollection is there may have been a mamber of dates that may have been
mentioned over a period of time, but at some peint, and it may have been at the
very end, Key made it clear to us that if we warted to go forward from |the
Tannary 1, 2004] date, thai was il

. X 14821 at 99:17-25 {Alaburda IH).

Q. Did Key propose any dates other than January 20047
A, It's hard for me to recall who proposed what other than that was part of what
the parlics wore discussmg af the erd until as I recall Kev made it clear that that
was 1t. Thore may be oiher poinis lo negotiate, but 1f we wanted a settlement that
was the date beyvond which they wouldn't po any sarhier.
(X 14821 at 101:9-17 {Alaburda IH).
The proposed finding is incomplete because it fails to mention thal a Schering

paymenl to AHP was part of the agreement in principle. CPF 872,

2.58.  Accordingly, the date of entry was not negotiated at all during the final settlement
conference on Janmmary 23, 1998, although the entry date of EST's product was referenced duning

the late-night conference call that occurred during the conference. {12 Ir. 2640 (J.F. Hoilman)).

Complaint Counsel’s Response ig Finding No.2 58:

The proposed finding is nol supported by the evidence. AIIP and Schering did not
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agree to a delayed entry date until the Janmary 23, 1998, meeting. See CPRF 2.57.

2.59.  Mor. Driscell testified that belore January 23, 1998, the pariics had nol reached an
agrecment on the date that ESL would bring its proposed generic to market. (12 Tr, 2720-21
{Driscolly}). While no final settlement agrezment had been reached, an agreement in principle on
this point had been reached. (12 Tr. 2640, 2619-20), 2638 (I.T'. Floffiman); 11 Tr. 253233
{Herman)). Mr. Driscoll was not involved in the EST settlenient negotiations on a day-to-day
basis in late 1997 and early 1998, {CX 1494 at 109:22-11(:8 {Dnscoll LH.}; SPX 1260 at

130:14-1% (Wassersten LH.); 12 Tr. 2721, 2724 (Driscoll); CX 470; CX 473).

Complaint Counsel’s Response to Finding No, 2 55

Respondent Schenng appears to be impeaching its own witness. However, the
propased [inding is not supported by the evidence and is contrary to more relighle
evidence. Mr. Driscoll’s testimony that “prior Lo that Friday night,” Schering and [ALIP]
had not agreed on the date AHP’s generic could enter {Tr. at 12:2720-21 (Driscoll)) was

corroborated by Dr. Dey and Mr. Alaburda. See CPRF 2.57,

F. The Jaunary [998 Settlement Mediation Conferences with Judge Rueier
2,60,  The final mediation scssions oceurred on January 22 and 23, 1998, m conjunction with &
Markman hearing held on Januvary 21 and 22, 1998, {11 Tr. 2529 (Hermar)). A Markman
hearing is & hearing at which evidence is taken and argument is heard so that the Court can

nterpret the claims of the patent at issue in the lawswit. (11 Tr. 2529 (Herman)).
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Complainl Counsci’s Response to Finding Ne. 2.60:

Complaint connscl has na specific response.

261,  Atihe bopimning of the Markman hearing, before any testimony was heard, ULS. District
Tudge DuBois noted that he had gotten “report after report™ from Judge Rueter regarding the
parties” settlement negotiations. (SPX 687, at EST HRG (({164). Judge DuBois expressed “a
bit of anger™ at the fact that the parties had not yet settled the casc, afier spending a “tremendous
amount” of the Court’s time and the client’s money on the case, (CX 1482 af 80:5-81:%
{Alaburda LH.); SPX 1222 at 81:10-18 (Alaburda [ H.); SPX 687, at ESI HRG 003164). Judze
DuBois stated:

All you people have been doimg 15 eating up time m this case.

You have gpenl a tremendous numbet of houts explotmg selliement. I have

gotten report after report from Judge Rueter. T shudder at the thought of the

amount of money that this case is costing vour respective client[s].

And I'm telling youw, as I have told you before, we’'re going forward with this

Markman hearing. I do not expect the case to settle from thig point on. If you

havc been horsing around with respect to settlement up to this point, you have

waited too long. [ expect this case to 2o now. [have invested time, we're

launched.

And if it does setile, we're going to have the hearing to detenmine why it is so

assumed, why it Jidn’'t settle before this lremendous investument of time, your time
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and Court time with appropriate officers from your respective corporations
presenl.”

{SPX 087, al ESTHRG 000164),

lainl Counsel’s Response to Finding No. 2.61 -

The proposed finding is not supporied by the evidence. Schering offered the
Murimun hearing transcript (SPX 687) for the himiled “nonhearsay purpose . . | solely to
set forth what the parties’ positions were [in the underlying patent cascs] and . . . evidence
they were relying on thal they contended supported it.” “I'r, at 32:7793, 7795 (Shores).
Schering is using the Mariman hearing transcript for a purpose for which Schering did
not oifer it. Further, none of the quoted language has the judge saying Schering shouid
make & payment for delay. CPRF 2,62, 2.64, 2.65, 2.60, 2.67.

Schering quotes the judge telling the partics that they were “going [orward with
the Mariman hearing,”™ The judge is not suggesting that he will not finish the Mardman
hearing or that he will refuse to try the case, See CPIN 870, 871, 883,

The proposed finding is misleading, irrelevant, and not supported by the evidence
to the extent it suggests or implies that the magistratc judge or the trial judge coerced
Schermng into its agreement with AHP, or that Schering acted on a belief that it was being

threatened by these court officials. See CPRF 2.4

2.62.  OnJanuary 22, 1993, the secontd day of the Markman hearing, the Court finished hearing

evidence at around 1 p.m. {SPX 687, at ESTHRG 000126-27). The parties had another
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settlement conference with Judge Ructer scheduled for 2 pan. {SPX 687, at ESI HRG 000126-
27). Iudge Dubois encouraged the parties to attend the scttlement conferenee, stating that “T
.].IG[JE it works.” {SPX 687, at ESIIIRG 000126). Judge Dubois told the parties “lo stay ax lung
as you think vou have to stay [with Judge Ructer], and I'll remain this cvemng as long as 1t takes

to finish this matter.” (SPX 687, at ESI HR{; 000127).

Complaint Counsel's Responss to Finding No. 2.62;

The proposcd linding is not supported by the evidence. Schering offered the
Markman hearing transcript (SPX 687) for the limited “nonhearsay purpose . . . solely 1o
sel forth what the parlies’ positions were [in the underlyving patent cases] and . . . cvidence
they were relving on that they contended supported it.™ Tr. at 32:7793, 7795 (Shores).
Schering 12 ustng the Markman heanng transenpd for 4 purpose for which Schering did
not offer it

The proposed {inding is misleading, irrclovant, and nol supporicd by the evidence
to the exient it suggests or implics that the magistrate judge or the trial judzc cocread
Schering into ils agreement with AHP, or that Schering Qcted on a belief that it wag being

threatened by thesc cowrt officials. See CPRF 2.4.

2.65.  The parties gpent about three and a half hours in the Jamuary 22, 1998 settlement

conference with Judge Rueter. {(SPX 687, at ESI HRG 000128).
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The proposed finding is not relevant.

2,64, On Jaruary 23, 1998, ancther settlement conference was scheduled with Judge Ructar at
2:3Gp.m. Judge Dubois again nrged the parties to settle the case:
Yo can repay the Court for its indulgence and patience by focnsing hard on
cumpromising and narrowing whalever diiferences remain between you in getting
this casc scttled. ['want to know nonc of the details of the settlement, T only urge
that vou do whatever you think sppropriate. Knowing full well that the Court,
like the two jury’s that we heard about in chambers, is just not predictabie,

(SPX 687, at EST HRG 000138).

Complaint Counsecl’s Response to Finding No. 2.64:

The proposed finding is not supported by the evidence. Scherng offered
the Markman heanng tranzeript (SPX 687} for the limited “nonhearsay purposc . . . solely
ta sct forth what the partics’ positions were [in the underfying patent cases] and . . .
evidence they were relying on that they contended supported it.” Tr. al 32:7793, 7765
{(shores). Schering is using the Markman hearing transcript for & purposc for which
Schering did not offer it

The proposed finding is misleading, irrelevant, and not supported by the evidence
to the cxtent it suggests or implies ihat the magtstrate judge or the trial judge coerced

Schering into its agreement with AHP, or thal Schening acted on a belief that it was being
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threatened by these court officials. See CPRF 2.4

2.65.  hidge DuBois explainad that he wanted the parties {0 setile and that he did not want (o
have to try the patent case:
I want you to take this husiness decision, and it iz a business decision and decide
il without any maore help than you're getting from Indge Rueter. T don’t want you
o usc the adjudicalory powers of the Cownt.
We're talking about the conciliatory services that the Courl offers, and that’s what
I want you to use to resolve the case. ITden’t want to have to adfudicate either this

case or Lhe lwo-week long or longer taal of this case. [ want you to try to do it.

(5P'X 687, at ESI HRG 000139).

Compigint Counsel’s Response to Findine No. 2.65:

The proposed finding is not supported by the cvidenve. Schertng olTered ihe
Marfznan hearing transcript {SPX 687) for the limited “nonhcarsay purposc . . . aolely to
get forth what the parties” positions were [in the underlying patent cases| and . . . evidence
they were relying on that they contended supported it.” Tr. al 32:7793, 7795 {Shores).
Schering is using the Markman hearing transcript for a purposc for which Schering did
not offerit.

The propesed finding is misleading, irrelevant, and not supported by the evidence
lo the exlent il sugpests or implies that the magistrate judge or the wrial judge coerced

Schenng mlo its agreement with AHD, or that Schering acted on a belief that it was being
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threatened by these court oflicials. See CPRF 2.4, Judge DuBois, in the quotation stated

above, described the Court’s role as merely “concilialory.™

2.66.  Judge DuBois explaincd that the parties could craft a settlement that was i both partics
interests, that the Cowrt did not have the power to order:
T think that's the best way to resolve a dispute of this kind, particularly since [
think you can craft a settlement among yourselves. It is beyond the power of the
Court to craft.
You could do things based on possible relationship belween the two companies
and do other things, . . . but when you look to what the Courl can do with respect
io relief, you can do more because you're not limited by what the stalutes say.
You can do whalever 1s best suited to the parties on which you reach agreement.

(SPX 687, at ESTHRG 00013%).

Complaint Counsel’s Response to Finding No. 2.66:

The proposed finding is not supparted by the evidence. Schering offered the
Markman hearing transcripl (SPX 687) for the limited “nonhesrsay purpose . . . solely to
set forth what the partics” positions were [in the underlying patent cases] and . . . evidenice
they were relying on that they contended supported it.™ Tr. at 32:7793, 77935 (Shores).
Achering is using the Marlanan hearing transeript for a purpose for which Schering did
not ::rffér it,

The proposed finding iz misleading, irrelevant, and not supported by the evidence
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to the extent it suggests or imphes that the magistrate judge or the trial judge cocreed
Schering into ils agresment with AHP, or that Schering acted on a belief that it was being

ihreatened by these court officials. See CPRF 2.4; CPF 858-890.

2.67.  Judge DuBois ended the session by ordenng the parhes to report to him on their propress

in settling the casc. (SPX 687, at ESI HRG 000140).

Complamnt Coumnsel’s Response to Finding Mo, 2,67

The proposged finding is not supported by the evidence. Schering otfered the
Merkman hearing transcript (SPX 687) fur the limiled “nonhearsay purpase . . . solely to
zet forth what the partics’ positions were [in the underhying patenl cases] and . . . evidence
they were relying {:;n that they contended supported it.” Tr. at 32:7793, 7795 (Shores).
Schening is using the Marlamnan heating transcript for a purposc for which Schering did
nol offer it

The proposed finding is misleading, irrelevant, and not supported by the evidence
to the extent it suggests or implics that the magistrate judge or the trial judge coerced
Schering inlo its agreement with AHP, or that Schexing acted on a belict that it was heing
threalened by these court offictals. See CPRF 2.4: CPF 888-890. At this time, the judge
cheouraged the settlemen! efforis, bul stated that “I want to know none of the details of
the settlement, I only urge you do whatever you think appropriate.™ Tr. at 11:2553
(Herman); see afsu CPF 871,

The proposcd finding is mislcading. The Markman heanng had net ended. On
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January 22%, the judge agreed to put off the closing arguments until the next day, Friday,

or the day after. Tr. at 11:2554 {Herman); see also Tr. at 11:2548 (Herman).

2,68, After the Markman hearng, Judge Dul3ais summoned Mr, Ileller and Mr, Herman 1o

chambers and said that he wanted them to go see Judge Rueter and settle the case. {11 Tr. 2530
(Herman), SPX 1266 at 129:8-130:8 (Herman Depo ); C'X 1492 at 136:9-15 (Dey LH.)). Judge
DruBois stated that the parties were to go see Judge Rucler and (o slay n the courthouse until the

case was settled. (11 Tr. 2530 (Hemman); SPX 1266 at 129:8-130:8 (Herman Depo.)).

Complaint Counsel’s Response o Findin

The proposcd finding is irrclevant, hearsay, and nol supported by the evidence,
Testimony regarding statements allegedly made by the magisirate and the inal judge was
the subject of numerous objections at trial, and was admitted only on a limited basis and
nol. for the tnuth of the matters asserted. See CPREF 2.17.

The proposed finding is misleading, itrelevant, :and not supported by the evidence
to the extent it suggests or implies that the magistratc judge or the trial judge coerced
Schering into its agreement with AHP, or that Schering acted on a belicl that il was being
threaiened by these courl officials. See CPRE 2.4,

The proposed Gnding is also misleading. The Mapfman hearing had not ended.
On January 22™, the judge simply agreed (o pul off the closing arguments unti]. the next

day, Friday, or the day after. Tr. at 11:2554 {Herman); see also Tr. at 11:2548 (Herman).
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The judge encouraged the setttement efforts, but stated that “T want to know none of the
delails of the selllement, T only urge you do whatever you think appropriate.” Tr. at

11:2553 {Herman}.

2.69.  Asscheduled, on Tanuary 23, 1998 the parties had another settlement conference with

Judge Bueter. (11 Tr. 2529 (Herman)). The session concluded about 11:30 pm, when an

agreement in principle was reached. (11 Tr. 2529, 2531-32 (Hermman)).

Complamt Counsel’s Response o Finding MNo. 2.69:

The proposed [nding is enclear and incomplete, The mediation conference was
held scparate from the Markman hearing and there 1s no transenipt of the mediation
conference, The Markman hearing had not concluded. Judge DuBois, who did not attend
any mediation confersnces had told the partics he would hold clesing arguments on

Saturday. CPRF 2.4, 2.67.

2,70, At the Janvary 23, 1998 mecting, in addition 1o Judge Eueter, were Mr. Herman and Ms.
Lee for Schering, and Mr. Heller, and Dr. Dev for ESI. (11 Tr. 2532 (Hertran)., During Lhe
evemng, there were also calls betweéen Judge Rueter and John Hoffman of Schering, who was at
home. (12 Tr. 2603, 2618-19, 2629 (I.F. Hoffman)}}. I'here were also telephone calls between
Tudgc Rueter and Mr. Driscoll, who was on his cellular phone at a New Jersey Nets hasketball
game with his sons. (11 Tr. 2532 (Hemman); 12 Te. 2619-20 (J.F. Hﬂfﬁnan_}, 27060 {Driscoll)).

Mr. Driscoll was told to take kis cell phone to the game, because Judge Rueter was probably
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going to want to talk to him because he wanted to find a settlement in the case. (12 °I7. 2706-07

(Dnscell); SPX 1231 at 104:17-25 (Driscoll LH.)).

Complamt Counsel’s Responsc to Finding No. 2,76

The proposed finding is misleading, irrclevant, and not supporled by the evidence
1o the exlent il sugzests or implies that the magistrate judge or the trial jndee coerced
Schering into its agreement with AHP, or that Schering acted on a belief that il was being
threatened by thesc court olficials. See CPRF 2.4.

The proposed finding’s implication that the magistrate judge or Lhe trial judge
approved the agreement in principle is not supported by the evidence. Furlhermore,
scveral anticompetilive terms were added 1o the final settlement agreemcn, afier the

magistrate’s involvement had ended. UPRE 2.2%, 2.84; see CPF 281.

2.71.  Before the January 23, 1998 mediation conference, the date of market entry for ESI's
genetic product had been agreaed to in principle as January 1, 2004, {12 Tr. 2640, 2619-20, 2638
(J.F. Hofliman); 11 Tr. 2532-33 (Herman)). The parties had also agreed in principle that Schering
would license generic enzalapril and buspirone from EST for $15 millien. (11 Tr. 2532 (Herman);

12 Tr. 2620 {J.F. Hoffman)).

Complainit Counsel”s Responge o Finding No. 2.71;

The proposed finding is not supported by the evidence. Mr. Doscoll agreed under

cross-examination that “prior to that Friday night,” Schering and [AHP] had not agresd
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on the amount Schering would pay AHF, on the date AHP’s generic could enter, or to
settle the case. See Tr. at 12:2720-21 (Driscoll), CFF 874. Dr. Dey testified that the “two
basic issues being discussed” on January 23" wers the date when AHP would be allowed
to cnter the market and the amount of money Schering would pay AHE. X 1492° at
142:4-43:2, 136:9-138:5 (Dey IH). Furthcrmore, correspondence helween Schering and

AINP reflect that the date was not agreed to before Jannary 23, See CPRF 2.54,

272, During the meecting, ESI ingisted on addilional payments. (11 Tr. 2533 (IHerman}). Mr.
Herman took the poaition that Schering was not going 10 pay any more money, and that it wanted
to try the case. (11 Tr. 2333 (Hemany). Judge Ructer suggested that Schonng pay EST §5
million, which he characterized as “nothing morte than legal fecs.” {11 Tr. 2533 {Hertnan); SPX
1266 at 125:15-126:7 (Herman Depo.}). When Mr. Henman rejected that idea, Judge Rueter

agked permission to call Mr. Driscoll and Mr. Hoffman. (11 Tr. 2533 (Herman)).

Complzint Counsel’s Response to Finding No. 2.72:

The proposad finding is misleading, irrelevant, and not supported by the evidence
to the cxlent 1t suggests or nnphes that the magistrate judge or the trial judge coerced
Schering into its agreement with AHP, or that Schering acted on a belief that it was being
threatened by these court officials. See CPRF 2.4,

The proposed finding is irrelevant and improperiy relies on aliomey statements
made in the course of negotiation to imply that the partics acied m accordance with the

cited statements, Drawing inferences concerning how the client acted based on attorneys'

39



.73,

staternents, while simultaneously asserting privilege as to underlying communications
between those attorneys and their client, is unfounded and impermissible. CPRF 2.17. In
fact, prier to making such statements, Schering had agreed to pay Upsher $60 million to
atay off the market, and had offered ALIP money through Schering’s proposal that AHP
abandon its ANDA product and co-promote Schering’s K-Dur 20. Moreover, in the end
mchering emiered milo d wrillen agreement with AHP which on its face shows payments of
515 muilion 1o be madc by Schering i1 consideration for AHs prommise to stay off the
markect.

The $5 million up-front payment in Y 4.1(a) in the final setflement agresment was
not for attorney fees. Neither the agreement in principle nor the final settlenient
agreemenl designated any payments as consideration for attomeys® fees. See UX 472; CX
479, Mr. Herman did not characterize the $5 million payment as legal fises. See 11, at
11:2533 (Herman). Schering did not know how much AHP had spent on legal fees. See
Tr. at 12:2643-44 (John {1offiman) (testified that AITP did not propose the $5 million
dollar figure and Schering had no basis for knowing AFP’s attomey’s fees.); see alvo
CFF 892, CPRE 2.75.

The proposed finding is irrelevant, hearsay, and not supporled by (he evidence.
Testimony regarding statements allegedly made by the magistrate and the trial fudge was
the subject of mumerous ohjections at trial, and was admitted only on a limited basis and

noit for the truth of the malters asserled. See CPRF 217

Judge Rueter called Mr. Driscoll during the second quarter of the basketball game. (12

56



Tr. 2707 (Driscoll); CX 1494 at 105:1-2 (Drigcoll LH.)}. The judge told him that there had been
a hearing that day in the case, and that Schering had “a good day,” but that he had haen tnstructed
by the district court judge to et a settlement that nizht. {12 Tr. 2707 (Duascall); SPX 1231 at
105:10-16 {Driscoll LHL);, SPX 1239 at 112:20-113:3 {(LF. Hoffiman 1.H.)). Judge Rueter stated
that the district court judge was not going to bc happy with Mr. Driscoll il there was no
seltlemenlt thal mghi. (12 Tr. 2707-09 (Driscoll)). Tudge Rueter asked Mr. Driscell why he
could not arrive at a seitlement. (12 Tr. 2709 (Driscoll}}. Judge Rueter stated that Schering
should have no difficulty offering ESI some compensaiion to settle. {12 Tr. 2710 { Driscoll}).
Tudge Rueter further stated that if there was no settlement, the partics should be in Judge
DuBois” courtroom at 8:00 am. the next morning, Satarday. (12 Tr. 2707-09 (Doscolly, SPX

1231 at 165:10-16 (Driscell LH.); SPX 1239 at 113:12-18; 114:23-115:4 () .F. Hoffman LH.)}.

Complaint Counsel’s Response to Finding No. 2.73:

The proposed finding is misleading, urclovant, and not suppoited by the evidence
to the extent it suggests or implies that the magistrate judge or the trial judge coerced
Schering into its agreement with AHP, or that Schering acied on a belief that it was being
threatened by these court u[ﬁ.cials. See CPRF 2.4,

The proposed finding i irrclevant, hcarsay, and not supported by the evidence.
Testitnony regarding statements allegedly made by the magistrate and the trial judge was
the subject of numerous ohjections at trial, and was admitted only on a limited basis and

nol for the truth of the matters asserted. See CPRF 2.17.
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2,74, Mr. Driscoll toid Judge Rueter that he did not want to seftle at all, and that ke did not
want to be on the phone talking sbout settlement. {12 Tr. 2708-10 (Driscoll)}. Mr. Driscoll told
Judge Rueter that Schering would not pay ESILto end the liipation. (CX 1494 a1 109:14-18
{Drizcoll LH.}. Morcover, Mr, Driscoll explained that he did not think EST cven had a viable
ANDA. . (12 Tr. 2710 {Driscoll); CX 1494 at 105:21-106:3 (Driscoll LH.). Accordingly, there

was no point n setthing. (12 Tr. 2710 (Driscoll); CX 1492 at 156:14-23 (Dey LH.)).

Complaint Counsel’s Response to Finding No. 2.74:

The proposed finding iz misleading, irrelevant, and not supported by the evidence
o the extent it suggests or implies that the magistrate judge or the trial judec coerced
Schermg mto 1ts ag‘rearpent with AHP, or that Schering acted on a belief that it was being
threatened by these court officaals. See CPRF 2.4; see UPF E8B-800,

The proposed finding is contradieted by tnore reliable evidence. Schering’s
statements and actions during the negotiations demonstrated thal Schering expected FDA
approval of AFP’s generic. See CPF 866-868; CPRF 2.49. Mr. Driscoll testified that his
asgerfed belief that AHP could not get approval was merely "“my assumption” based on

AHPs behavior during ncgofiations. CX 1494 at 127:23-128: 10 (Driscoll [H).

2,75, Judge Rueter also called Mr. Hoffinan at home. (12 Tr. 2618 (J.F. Hoffiman)). Judge
Rueter again asked Schering to pay ESI meney. (12 Tr. 2620 (1.F. Heffman)). Alfter Schening
continued 1o refuse, Judge Rueter told Mr. Hoffman that Schering could “at least™ pay ESI legal

fees m the amount of $5 milhon. {12 Tr. 2620 (J.F. [offiman)). Judge Rueter charactcrizod the
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$5 million payment as legal fees. (12 Tr. 2644 (1 F. Hoffman}). Schering eventuaily agreed to

the 55 mitlion paymenl, (12 Tr. 2620 {J.F. Hoffinan)y; 12 Tr. 2534 {(Herman)).

Comnplaint Counsel’s Response to Finding N, 2.75:

The proposed finding is misleading, irrelevant, and not supported by the evidence
to the cxlend it supeests or implies (hal the magistrate judge or the trial judge coerced
Schering inte its agrecment with AHP, or thal Schenng acted on a belief that it was being
threatened by these court officials, bSee CPRF 2.4,

The proposed [nding is irelevant, hearsay, and not supported by the evidence.
Testimony regarding statements allegedly made by the magistrate and the trial judge was
the subject of numcrous objections at trial, and was admitted only on a limited basis and
not for the truth of the matters asserted. Sce CPRF 2.17.

Mr. Hoffman declined to characterize the $35 million paymeni as legal fees, and
stated that Schering had ne information from AITP that its legal foes amounted to 35
million, Tr. at 12:2643-44 {John Hoffman); sec alse CPF 891-892, There is no evidence
ta support Schf:ring;s attorncys’ testimony that Judge Rueter suggested Scherning’s

payment of legal fees in the amount of $5 million. See CPF 831-892; CPRF 2.72.

2.76. ESI continued to ingist an another $1G million. (1171, 2535 (Herman)). Judge Rueter
calied Mr. Driscoll again. (12 Tr. 2710 (Driscoll); CX 1494 at 106:8-14 (Driscoll LH.)}. Tudge
Rueter emphasized that there had o be a seitlement and expressed his view that the parties could

come to a mutually agrecable position. {12 Tr. 2711 {Dnscoll)). Judge Rueter emphasized that
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lhere could be some “mddle ground.™ {12 Tr. 2711 {Driscoll)). Mr. Driscoll again cxpressed
doubis that EST had a produet. (12 Tr. 2711 (Driscolly, CX 1482 at 109:20-23 {Alaburda LH.);

SPX 1222 at 111:9-16 {Alaburda TH.); CX 1492 at 156:16-23 (Dey LHL)).

Complaini Covnsel's Response to Finding No. 2.76:

The proposcd finding is misleading, irrelevant, and not supported by the evidence
to the extent it suggests or implies that the magisirate judge or the trial judge coerced
Schering into its agreement with ALLP, or that Schering acted on a beliel that il was being
threatened by these court officials. See CPRF 2.4.

The proposed Dnding is mrelevanl, hearsay, and not supported by the evidence.
Testimony regarding statcments allcgedly made by the magistrate and the trial judge was
the subject of numerous ohjections at trizl, and was adrilled only on a lin;l:lfﬂd basis and
not for the trath of the matters asserted, See CPRF 2.17.

The proposed finding is contradicted by more reliable evidence. Schoring’s
statements and acttons during (he negotiations demonstrated that Schering cxpected FDA
approval of AHP’s generic. See CPF 866-868; CPRF 2.49. Mr. Driscol! testified that his
asserled belief that AHP could not get approval was mercly “my assnmption™ hased on

AHDP's behavior dunng negotiations, CX 1494 gt 127:23-128:10 (Driscoll TH).

2.77.  Mr Driscoll and Judge Rueter explored ways to settle, (12 Tr. 2712 (Driscoll), 2620-21
(J.F. Hoffman}). Mr. Driscoll testificd that he came up with a concept under which Schering

would not have to pay ES1 any mency if ESI cenld not obtain approval of its ANDA product. If
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E&1 received approval for its ANDA by a date cerlain, Schering wonld make a certain payment.
(12 Tr. 2712 (Driscoll); CX 1494 at 110:9-17 {Driscoll LH.}, 12 Tr. 2620-21 (I.F. Hoffinan); CX
1492 at 156:14-157:2 (Doy LH.)). Ifthe date was later, it would be a lesser payment. (12 Tr.
2712 {Driscoll); CX 1494 at 110:9-17 (Dnscoll LHL); 12 Tr. 2620-21 (£.F. Hoffiman). M.
Dmiscoll ultimately agreed that Schering counld make cerlain payments, consisting of $10 million
if ESI's ANDA were approved by July, $3 rillion ilil were approved 6 months later, with

further decreasing payments. (12 Tr. 2712 (Driscoll).

Complaint Counscl’s Responsge to Finding No, 2.77:

The proposed finding is ambiguous in that Schering does not clearly state that Mr.
DPnscoll admitted that Mr. Driscoll, not the magistrate, came up with the concept of a
graduated payment clause linking the payment of moncy to AHP oblaining FDA
approval. See Tr. al 12:2723-4 (Driscoll); see afso CX 14821 at 74:10-75:10, 110:21-25,
111:5-8 (Alaburda TH} (recallmg the provision as Schering’s idea and recalling no tenns
that were suggested by the magish‘até}.

Schering’s suggestion that the payment torms came from the magistrate judge are
contrary to more reliable evidence. The evidence shows that: (1) AHP proposed (ving a
payment (AHP asked for $50 mllion} to FDA approval in a December 1997 letier to
Schering counsel (CX 471 at 8P 06 00049); (2} Mr. Driscoll testified that the concept of a
declining pavment based an the datc that AHP’s product was deemed appravable was his
idea Tr. 12:2724; (3) neither the agreement in principle nor the final seitlement

agreement designated any payments as consideration for attorncys’ fees (CX 472; CX
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2.78.

479); and {4} no witness tesiified thal the $5 mrlhon payment was to tetmburse AHP’s
ditomeys’ fees. See CPRF 2,72, 2.75. The record thus does nol support the proposad
finding. CPF 891.

This propesed finding is also irrelevant. Bven if the magistrate had some
mvolvement in 1he seitlement terms, this would not suggest ihal Schermg’s apreement
with AHP is not anticompetitive. His role was to facilitaic a scttlement, not to represent
consumers or conduct an antitrust review. Any opinion he may have expressed in favor

of the settlement is irrelevani o the assessment of compebtive effects in this case.

When Mr, Driscoll made this commitment, he was certain thal Schaing would not have

topayit. (12 Tr. 2713, 2722 (Driscoll); CX 15309 at 104:4-21 (L.F. Hol[fman Depe.); CX 1482 at

109:20-23 (Alaburda 1.5.)).

2.79.

Complaint Counsel’s Response to Finding No. 2.78:
The proposed linding is not relevant and is contradicted by more reliable
evidence. Schering’s statements and actiong during the negotiations demonstrated thai

Schering expected FDA approval of AHP s generic, See CPF 866-868; CPRF 2.49.

Judge Rueter then called Mr. Hoftman and discussed this seltlement proposal, which has

been deserihed as a bet. (12 Tr. 2620-21 (J.F. Hotfinan); SPX 1239 at 114:23-115:10(J.F.

Holfman LH.); CX 1509 at 70:23-71:14 (J.F. Heffman Depo); 11 Tr. 2535 (Herman)). Mr.

Hoffiman asked why Schering should pay any more money when EST did not cven have a
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product. (11 Tr. 2535 (Herman)}.

Complainl Connsel’s Response to Finding No. 2.79:

The proposed finding is incompleic. I fuls to state that Mr. Driscoll, a Schering
represcntative, suggested the payment term that Mr, Hoffman later named “the bet.™ See
CPRF 2.77.

The proposed finding is contradicted by more reliable evidence. Schuring's
slatements and actions during the negetialions demonstrated that Schering cxpected FDA
approval of AHP’s generic. See CPF 866-868; CPRF 2.49. 'Lhe mnplication from Mr,
Hoffman's statement is that hie was bolstering his clicnt’s negoriating position.

The proposed finding s misieading, irrelevant, and not supporicd by the evidence
to the extent it sugpesls or implies that the magistrate judge or the trial judze coerced
Schering into its agreement with AHP, or that Schering acted on g belief that it was being
threatened by these cowrt olficials. See CERF 2.4.

The proposed finding is irrelevant and improperly relies on attorney statements
made m the course of negotiation to imply that the partics acted in accordance with the
citcd statcments. Drawing inferences concerning how the client acted based on attorneys'
statements, while simultaneonsly asserting privilege as to widerlying conmmunications

between those attomeys and their client, is unfounded and impermissible. CPRF 2.17.

280,  Judge Rueter told Mr. Hoffman that he wanted Schering to “put [its] money where [its)

mouth [was]” regarding Schering’s doubts about ESI's ability to gain FDA approval for its
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product. {12 Tr. 2620 (I.F. Hoffman); SPX 1239 at 114:19-25 (I.F. Hoffman LH.);11 I'r, 2535
(Hermany), Judge Rueter stated that iF Schering was right about HS!'s inability io get FDA

approval, “this won't cost you anything.” {12 Tr. 2620 (J.F. Hoffman}, 11 Tr. 2535 (Herman)).

Complainl Counsel's Response to Hinding No. 2.80:

The proposed linding is irrelevant, hearsay, and not snpported by the evidence.
Testimony regarding statements allcgedly made by the magistrate and the trial judge was
the subject of numerous objections at trial, and was admitted only on a lirmted basia and
not for the truth of the matters asserted. See CPRF 2.17.

The proposed Gnding 18 misleading, itrelevant, and not supported by the cvidence
to the cxtont it suggests or implics thal the magi%tmte Judge or the trial judge coerced
Schering into its agreement with AHP, or that Schering acied on a belief that it was being
threatened hy these court afficials. See CPRF 2.4.

The propesed finding is ambiguous in that it implies that Judge Rueler sugpested
the graduated payment when, in fact, Mr. Driscoll admitted that he himsclf came up with

the idea. CPRF 2.77, 2.8%.
281, Al Judge Rueter’s urging, Schering eventually agreed to this term. (11 Tr. 2537
{Herman)}. At this point, there was an agreement in principle. {11 Tr. 2537 (Herman); 12 Tr.

2621 {I.F. Hoffiman)).

Complaint Counscl’s Responsg 1o Finding No. 2.81:
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The proposed finding 1= trusleading, imelevant, and not supported by the evidence
to the extent it siggests or implies that the magistrate judge or the trial jndge coerced
Schering into its agreemenl wilth AHP, or thal Schering acled on a belief that it was being

threatened by these court officials. See CPRF 2.4,

2,82,  Judge Rueter called all the parties together in his chambers and on the phone, and he

congratalated them. (12 Tr. 2621 {J.F. Hoffinan}}.

Complamt Coungal’s Responge to Finding No, 2.82:

The proposcd finding is not relevant and is incomplete. While the agreement in
principle settled the lawsuit, the final settlement agreement reached in June, 1998
contained several anticompetitive terms added after the agreement in principle was

reached. CPF 881; CPRF 2.84.

2.83.  Iudge Rucler asked the partics to wrile up the terms and initial or sign them that night.
{12 Tr. 2621 (J.F. Hoftman}). 1n the secretarial arca of Judge Rueter’s chambers, Mr. Heller,
counsel for ESL hand wrote out the settlfement principles with Schering’s representatives and

Judge Rueter “sort of clustered aronnd him.” (11 Tr. 2337, 2488 (Hermaw); CX 472).

Complaint Counsel’s Response to Finding No. 2.83:

The proposcd finding’s implication that Judge Rueter — by “ciustering™ —

approvéd the agreement in principle is not supported by the evidence. CPRF 2.28.
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2.84,

Furthermore, several anficompetitive terms were added to the final settlement agresment
aftcr the magistrate’s involvement had ended. See CPF 881; CPRF 2.54.

The proposcd frding is irrclevani, heamay, and not supported by the evidence.
Testimony regarding statements allecgedly made by the magistrate and the trial judge was
the subjcct of mumcrous objcctions at trial, and was admilted only on a limited basis and

not for the truth of the matters assarted. See CPRF 2.17.

The two-page handwriilen agreemenl in panciple, dated Janvary 23, 1996, was signed by

Mr. Heller and Susan Lec, who was the dircetor of patent hligation for Schermg. {11 'I'r, 2488-

89 (Herman}); CX 472). Judge Rueter was present at the preparation and signing, looking over

the shoulder of Mr. Heller as he propared it in the secretarial area of the judee’s chambers. (11

Tr. 2489 (Hermum)).

Complaint Coursel’s Besponse o Finding No, 284

The proposed finding’s implication that the Judge Rueter — by “locking over the
shoulder” of Mr. Heller — approved the agreement in principle, is not supporied by the
evidence. See CPRF 2.28. Furthermore, several anticompetitive terms were added to the
final seftlement agreement alter the magistrate’s involvement had ended, including: a
bar on cntry before 2004 with sy generic version of K-Dur 20; a bar on entry with more
than one generic product between 2004 and 2006, regardless of whether the product
infringed; & prohibitin.n on AHP conducting or supporting any studies on the

bioequivalence of a generic product to K-Dur 20; and a prohibition on AHP transferring

H6



its ANDMA. Spe CPF 851

2.85. The January 23, 1998 handwntten agicement in principle states, among other things, thal
Schering would grant ESI a license under its K-Dur patent beginning on January 1, 2004, {CX
472). The JTapuary |, 2004 entry date reasonably reflects the parties’ respective positions in Lhe
patent case. {15 Tr. 3369, 3371 (Millcr); SPX 1222 al 105:10-106:12 (Alaburda 1.H.); CX 1509
at 106:8-21 {(L.F. Hoffinan Depe.), CX 1308 at 116:1-12 (J.F. Hoffman LH.)). At the time ESI
apreed to the Januvary 1, 2004 entry date, EST had “considerably less * than a 50/50 chance of
prevailing in the patent iitigation. (SPX 1222 m 105:17-106:12 (Algburda LH.); CX 1492 al
137:5-12, 138:0-20 (Dey LH.)). ESI felt it was al sk of losing (he patent case on the issncs of
bath literal infringement and infringement under the doctrine of eqmvalence. (SPX 1222 at
104:1-8 {Alaburda LH.}}. ESI had to wim on both of those issues to prevail. (SPX 1222 at 104:1-
106:12 (Alaburda TLH.)). EST had at most a 25% chance of prevailing, and also faced a
considerable risk of losing the cuse and looking badly before senior manageinent i1l lost Taiher
than settled. (SPX 1222 at 105:17-106:12 (Alaburda T.H.)). Moreover, ESLbelicved it was
blocked from the market by the Upsher settlement until March 2002, {(CX 1482 $%:4-22

(Alaburda LH.); SPX 1222 al 93:8-94:19 (Alaburda LEL)).

Complaint Counscl’s Responge to Fitding No. 2.85:

The proposed finding is irrelevant and contradicted by other evidence. There was
a reasonable probability that AHP would have won the patent case. See CPF 821-840.

Schering itself acknowledged that there was a chance that AHP could win the litigation.
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See CPEF 858-840. Indeed, Schermg’s techmical expert, Dr, Banker, testified that during
the Markman hearing the distriet judge staled that Schering did not have a “slam dunk
casc”. See Tr. 14:3038-39 (Banker). See aivo CPRF 3,47, 3.554-3.562. The proposcd
finding 18 also incomplcte in thal 1l omits any reference to AHP’s affirmative defenses
relating to the invalidity and unenlorceabililiy of the “743 patent, even though success on
eifher defense by ATP provided a complcte defonse to infiingement. See CPRF 3.480-
3.482.

To the extent ihal Schenng relies upon Mr. Miller's estimate of its likclihood of
suceess, the proposed finding is irrelevant and unsupporied by the evidence. Mr. Miller is
not a techmical expert and therefore cannot opine on technical issues dispositive to the
resolution of the underlving patent case. See Tr. at 15:3287, 3392-3393 (Miller). And
M. Miller canmot rely on such an opinien by Dr. Banker, Schering's technical expert in
the nnderlying titigation, because Dr. Banker admitted that he eould not assess the
probability of the court deciding in Schering's favor, See Tr. at 14:3253-36 {Banker).
Aceordingly, any catimaic of success by Mr. Miller is imrelevant and unsupported by the
evidence. See CPRF 3.563-3.564, 3,366,

The proposed finding is irrelevant and not supported by the evidence. Becanse of
privilege claims, complaint counscl has had no opportunity to test statements alleging thai
Schering attempted to scttle the patent litigation by splitting the patent life to “reflect the
meri_ts of the litigation.” Access to privileged communications and documents was
necessary in order to determine whether Schering’s internal estimates of its likelihood of

siccess in the patent litigation (if any) were in any way consistent with these assertions.
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As Your Honor has properly recognized, these statements cannot support an inference
that Schering acted in accordance with these statements. Sec Tr. at 12:2617-18.

The proposed linding is also incomplete. First, at the time of the Schering/ AHP
settlemnent n January, there was uncertainty about whether Upsher would be enlilled to
the 180-day exclusivity. CPF 842, 611-15. If Upsher was not entitled to thel 30-day
exclusivity period, AHFP would be free to launch ils generic K-Dur product after & victory
in the Schering-AHP litigation or the end of the 30-tnonih period, and FDA approval.
CPE 22, 26. Tf Upsher did hold the 180-day exclusivity, there was & subslantial
possibility, as of January 23, 1998 (lhe date Schering and AP agreed to a settlement in
principle), that a decision in favor of AHP weuld trigger UTpsher's 180-day exclusiviry
period. See CPT 842, 916-922. Once the exclusivity period was triggered and had run its
course, the FD.A could grant final approval for AHP’s generic K-Dur. CPF 22, 27,
Second, while the January 23, 1998 agreement in prineiple settled the lawsuit, the final
selllement agreement reached in June, 1998 contained several anticompctitive terms

added alter the agreemenl m principle was teached. CPF 881; CPRI 2.84.

By contrast, Schering regularty expressed the view during the settlement diseussions that

ithad a very sirong case. (SPX 1222 at 64:7-14 (Alaburda £.H.); 11 Tr. 2511 {Herman); SPX

1240 at 86:15-88:7 (I.F. Hoffiman Depo.)). Schering was very likely to win the patent casc. (13

Tr, 3323, 3351, 3361, 3367-68 (Millet)).

Complaint Counsel™s Response to Finding No. 2.86:
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The proposed finding 1s nrelevant and unsupported by the evidence to the extent
that it relies upon Mr. Miller's estimate of Schering’s likelihood of suceess in the casc.
M. Miller is nol a lechnical expert and therefore cannot opine on technical issues
dispositive o the resolution of the underlying patent case. Tr. at 15:3287, 3392-3393
{Miller}. And Mr. Miller cannot rely on such an opimon by Dr. Banker, Schering's
technical expert in the underlying litigation, because Dr. Banker admitted that he could
not assess the probability of the court deciding in Schonng's Gevor. Tr. al 14:3253-36
(Banker). Accordingly, any estimate of success by Miiler is irrclevant and unsupported
by lha evidence. See CFRE 3.363-3.564, 3.566.

Furthermoeore, the proposcd finding is incomplete and misleading in that it omits
reference to contrary opinions as to the strength of Schermg's case. For example,
Schering’s technical expert, Dr. Banker, testified that dunng the Mardmar hearing in the
onderlying litigation, the district judge stated that Schering did not have a “slam dunk
case’”. Tr. ai 14:3038-39 (Banker). See also CPF 838 (Magistrate Judge Reuter told AHP
(hat he thoughl AHTP had somewhat the better of the infringement case.). Schering itsell’
acknowiledged that there was a chanes that AHP eould win the hthgmtion. See CPF §3%-
R4i1.

The proposed finding is imelevant and improperly relies on attorney statemcnis
made i the course of negotiation to imply that the parties acted in accordance with the
cited statements. Drawing inferences conceming how the client acted based on attorncys'
statements, while simmltancously asserting privilege as to underlying communications

between those attorneys and their client, is unfounded and mpermissible. CPRF 2.1 7.
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2.87.  The handwritten agreement in principle also states that ESI grants to Schering the right to
market ESI°s generic versions of enalapril and buspirone in Furope. {CX 472). The handwritren
agresment in principle also states that Schering would provide $1¢ million to EST upon the
signing of the settiement agreement, and $10 millien split imto equal monthly installments to be
paid over seven and a half vears. (CX 472). In addition, the handwritten agreement in prineiple
states that Schering would pay EST an amount between $625 000 and $10 million, depending on

the datc of FDA approval of ESI’s generic version of K-Dur 20, (CX 472).

The proposcd linding i1s incomplote. It fails Lo state that several anticompetitive
terms were added to the final sctticment agreement alter the magdsirate’s involvement had

ended. S2¢ CPF BR1: CPRF 2 .84,

2.88. Judge Rueter was keenly aware of all the terma in the Jarnuary 23, 1998 handwritten

agreement in prineiple, and proposed several of the terms. (11 Tr. 2489 (Hemmany); CX 1506 at

156:19-157:1 {Herman Depo)).

Complant Counsel's Response to Finding No. 2 88;

The proposed finding is not supported by the evidence to the extent it suggests
that the magistralc or trial judge approved the agreement in principle. There was no court

approval of cither the January 1998 scitlement terms, ot the June 1998 final agreement.
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See CPF 893-900). Neither agreement was submitted for approval, embodied in anv court
order, or subjected 1o any appraval process. See CPF 893-900. Furthermore, the June
1998 final agreement contains additional terms not contained in the January 1998
agreement in principle that further reflect the anticompetitive nature of the partics’
agreement. See CPF 881; CFRE 2.84.

The proposcd finding is contrary to more reltable evidence showing that the
payment terms did not come from the magistrate judge. The evidence shows that: (1)
AHP proposed tying a payment (AHP asked for $50 million) to FDA approval m a
December 1997 letter to Schering counsel (CX 471 at SP 06 00049); (2) Mr. Driscoll
testilied that the concept ol a decliming payiment based on Lhe dale fhat AHP s product
was deemied approvable was his idea Tr. 12:2724; (3) neither the agreement in principle
nior the final settlement apreement designated any payments as consideration lor
attorneys” fees {CX 472; CX 479); and {(4) no witmess testified that the $3 millicn
payment was to reimburse AHP®s allomeys” [ees. See CPRF 2.72,2.75. The record thus
does not suppert the proposed finding, CPF 891,

This proposed finding 12 alse irrelevant. Even if the mapistrate had some
involvcment in the settlement terms, ihis would not suggest that Schering’s agreement
with AITP is not anticompetitive. His role was to facilitate a settlement, not to represent
consumers or conduct an antitrust review. Any opinion he may have expressed in favor
of the setttement is irrelevant to the assessment of competitive effecis in this case.

There is ne evidence te support Mr. Hoftiman's testimony that Judge Rueter

.ﬁuggasted Schering’s payment of Jegal fees in the amount o' §5 million. See CFPF 892,
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CPRFE 2.72.

2,89, Judge Rueter had 1old the parties that he was going to apprisc Judge DuBois of the terms
of the settlement, as he had apprised Judge DuDois in detail during the cowrse of the settlement
nepolialions duning the 15 month mediation progess, (11 Tr. 2490 (Herman), SPX 687, at EST

HRG O 64); see afse 11 Tr. 2514-15 (Herman); CX 462; SPX 1196; SPX 1198).

Complaint Counsel’s Response to Finding No. 2.89:

1he propesed fmding 15 not supported by the evidence to the extent it suggests
that the magistrate or trial judge approved the agreament in principle. There is no
evidence Judge Rueter told Judge DuBois — who specifically stated he did not want 1o
know any of the details of the settlement -- the lerms of the settlemment. See CPF 893,
There wag no court approval of either the Jannary 1998 selllement terms or the June 1998
final agreement. See CPF 893-900. Neither agreement was submitted for approval,
cmbadicd 1n any court order, or subjected to any approval process. See CPF 893-900.
Furthermore, the JTune 1998 [inal apreenieni contains additional terms not contained in the
Tanuary 1998 agreement in principle that further reflect the anlicompetitive nature of the
parties” agreement. See CPF 881; CPRF 2.84. There is no cvidence thal the magistrate or
the trial judge saw the final settlement agreement. See CPF 897,

The proposed fnding is imelevant, hearzay, and not supported by the evidence.
Tcstimony regarding statements allegedly made by the magistrate and the frial judge was

the subject ol numerons objeclions al trial, and was admitted only on a limited basis and
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not for the truth of the matters asserted. Sce CPRF 2.17.

290, In alater dated Tanvary 26, 1998, Judge DuBois congramlated counsel on settling rhe
case. (CX 421). Judpe DuBois wroie:
| “Congratulations on getting this case scttled. As you know, the
settlement resulted in a resolution of the dispute that
accommodated the interests of the parties but could not have been
awarded by the Court at trial. Tt represcnis a job well done. ™

{CX 481; 11 Tr. 2489-90 (Hemman)).

sponse W Findi

The proposed findmg is nol relevant. There is no evidence that Judge DuBois
approved the agreement in prineiple is not supporled by the evidence. CPREF 2.89. The
Tamuary 26" letter does nat support the finding's implication that Judge DuRois — who
specifically stated he did not want to know any of the details of the settlement — knew or

approved the terms of the January agreement in principle. CPRF 2,89,

291, Immediately after the agreement in principle was reached on January 23, 1998, the

district judge conditionally dismissed the case. (12 Tr. 2651-52 (I.I. Holfman)).

Complaint Counsel’s Response to Finding No. 2.01:

The proposed findimg 15 nol televant, Olherwise, complaimt counsel has no
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gpecific response,

2.92.  The Janvary 23, 1998 agreement at CX 472 is not compicte in that it does not allocale
the monstary payments as between the license agreement [or buspirone and cnalapnl and the $5
milhon payment. (11 Tr. 2338 (Herman}, SPX 1266 at 177:23-25, 178:1-6 {Herman Depo.); CX

472).

onse 1o Findin

The proposcd finding is incomplete. Scveral anlicompetitive terms were added
after the agreement in principle was reached and the magistrate judge’s involvernent had

ended. See CPF 881; {PRF 2.84.
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II. DRAFTING THE FINAL AGREEMENT

293,  Ms. Somerville later sent a more formal drait agrecment to Mr. Herman, accompamed by
a transmittal letter. (11 Tr. 2538 (Herman); CX 478). That initial draft does not accurately
reflect what the parties agreed to that evening with Judge Rueter. (11 Tr. 2539 (Herman), SPX
1266 at 181:15-25, 182:1-19, CX 478). Paragraph 16 of the draft characterizes all the payments
as royalty payments, when only $15 million of the $30 million were royalty pavments. {i1 Tr.

2539 (Hernan); CX 478).

Complaint Coungel’s Response 1o Finding No. 2.93:

The proposed finding is incomplete. The other 15 million payment was for
AHP’s agreement to delay entering the market.  Also, several anticomptitive terms were
added after agreement i principle was reached and the magistrate judge’s involvement

had ended. See CPF 881 CPRY 2.84.

2.94.  This ervor was corrscted in the final drafis of the agreements. {11 Tr. 2539 (Homan);
CX 479; CX 480). The final drafts of the agreements were prepared by Covington & Burling.
{11 Tr. 25332 (Herman)). The final agreement was reached in June 1998 (11 Tr. 2539 (Herman);

12 Tr. 2052 {J.F. Hoffman); CX 479).

Complainl Counsel’s Kesponse to Hinding No. 2.94:

The proposed finding is incomplete. Several anticompetitive terms were added

afler agrecment m poneiple was reached and the magistrate judge’s involvement had

ELE



ended. See CPE 8B81; CPRF 2.84.

295 Under the (nal setilement agreement, Schering paid ESI a 35 million noncontingent
payment and an addrtional 510 million contingent on ESI's FDA approval. (12 Tr. 2643 (I.F.

Holliman); CX 479).

Complaint Counsel’s Response to Finding No. 2.95:

The propased finding is incomplete. Schering’s S15 million in paymenis to AHP

were in exchange for AHP not entermyg the market until Janeary 2004,

2.96.  Shortly before the June 199% §10 million payment deadline, EST received approval from
the FDA. (12 Tr, 2646 {].)". Hoffinan)}. Accordingly, Schering paid ESI$10 million. (12 Tr.

2646 (I.F. Hoffinan}).

Complaint Counsel’s Response 1o Finding No. 2.96:

The proposed finding is incomplete. Schering also paid AHP $5 million 1en days
after the cxecution and delivery of the June 19, 1998, final settlement agreementl.
Schering Answer 1 59. As ol February 28, 2002, AHP had not entered the K-Dur 20

marker. Tr. at 28:7023-26 {Safir).

2.97.  The tofal amount of the payment, 315 million, is about 2 percent of the $60G million in
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profits Schenmg anticipated from K-Dur sales from the date of the selilement until January 1,

2004, when ESE's product could enter the market wnder the agreement. {CX 134 at SP 004672).

Complaint Counsel’s Response to Finding No, 2.97:

The propased finding is not relevant because the issuc 15 whether Schering’s
payment to ESI was sulTicient lo induce ESI to agree to stay off the market with its
generic product. Schering’s payment was clearly sufficient because ESL, in fact, did agree

to stay off the market.
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HOI. SETTLEMENT LANGUAGE RELATED TO OTHER PRODUCTS

298, The inciusion of clauses in the selllement agreements that affected ESI™s cxploitation of
products similar to K-Dur 20 [or a period of time prevent ES] from making minor, insubstantial
modifications to its product and filing another AND A with an infringing product. {(SPX 1228

159:9-160:2 (Dey LH.)).

Complaint Counsel’s Response to Finding No. 2.98:

The propesed finding is incomplete and not supparted by the evidence. Firsl, the
changes alluded to in the finding were were added afler agreement in principle was
Teached amd the magistrate judge’s involvement had cnded. See CPRF 2.88.
Furlhermeore, the June 1998 final agreement containg additional (¢nns not contained in the
January 1998 agreement m principle that further refloct the anticompetitive natare of the
parties’ agrecment: a bar on entry before 2004 with any generic version of K-Dur 20; a
bar on entry with more than one generic product belween 2004 and 2006, regardless of
whether the product infringed; a prehibition on AHP conducting or supporting any
studics on the bioequivalence of a generic product to K-Dur 20; and a protubition on

AHP transferring its ANDA. CPF 881,

2.99.  The inclusion of clauses in the scttlcment agreements that affected ESE's exploitation of
products similar te K-Pur 20 for a period of time are ancillary restrainis that are necessary for a

pro-cotnpelilzve agreement to be feasible and viable. (24 Tr. 5798 {Addanki)).
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Complaint Counsel’s Besponse to Findinge Neo. 2.0G:

‘The proposed finding is ineomplete and not supported by the evidence. CPRF

2.98.

2.100.  Professor Bresnahan conceded that *if the sertlement was otherwise pro-competitive,”

such a setflement term wonld not be anticompetitive. (5 Tr. 987-88, 990-91 (Bresnahan),

Complaint Counsel’s Pesponse to linding No. 2.100:

Complaint connsel hag no ¢pecific responze.

I¥. ESIEXITED THE GENERICS BUSINESS

2.101.  ESI exited the solid oral generics business. (CX 1548 45:21-25 (Dey Depo.)). BSI

announccd its intention to do so in Fuly 2001 . (January 16, 2002 Stipulation).

Comnplammt Counsel’s Response to Finding Mo. 2,101

The proposed finding is incomplete.  Under the Junc 1998 final seillement
agreement, AHP 15 prohibiied from lremsferring its ANDA. CPF 881, This
anticompetitive term was added after the agreement in principle was reached and the

magistrate’s involvemcent had ended. CPF 881.

30



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, Pamela L. Timus, hereby certify Uhal on May 14, 2002, Tcaused two copics ol the “Public
Vergion™ of the following:

- Complaint Counsel’s Reply to Schering-Plough’s Proposed Findings of Fact
Relating to the Settlement with ESI-Lederle

- Complaint Counsel’s Reply to Schering-Plough’s Propnsed Findings Relating to the
Underlying Patent Cascs

- {Complaint Counsel s Reply to Schering-Plongh’s Proposed Findings of Fact Relating
to the Settlement with Upsher-Smith (Volumes | & 2)

— Complaint Coungel’s Reply Brief

- Complaint Clounsel’s Reply 1o Schenng-Plough®s Proposed Ecotiomic and Policy
Findings

- Complaint Counsel’s Reply to Upsher-Smith’s Proposed Findings of Facts
{(Yolumes] thru 3)

10 be scrved by hand delivery upon:

The Honorable D, Michael Chappell
Admintstrative Law JTudge

Federal Tradc Commission

600 Pepnsylvania Avenue, N'W

W ashimgton, DC 20580

and ene copy upon the following persons via Federal Express:

Christopher M. Curran, Esy.
White & Casc

61 Thirtcenth Strest, NW
Washingzton, DC 20005-3807

Laura 3, Shores

Howrey & Simon

1294 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW
Washington, DC 20004-2402

bl oA i

Tramela L. Timus
Federal Trade Investigalor



